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The Board of Governors
The Board of Trustees
Rutgers, The State University of New Jersey

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Rutgers, The State University of New
Jersey (the “University”) as of June 30, 2002 and 2001, and for the years then ended, listed in the
foregoing table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the management of the
University. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial statement audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the University at June 30, 2002 and 2001, and its revenues, expenses and changes in net assets, and its
cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements taken as a
whole. The Management’s Discussion and Analysis is the responsibility of the University’s
management, is presented for purposes of additional analysis, and is not a required part of the financial
statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board. We have applied certain limited procedures which consisted principally of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2002 the University changed its method of
financial reporting to conform to Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 35, Basic
Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for Public Colleges and
Universities, and, retroactively, restated the 2001 financial statements presented to reflect the change.

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements of the
University taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, is
presented for purpose of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non - Profit Organizations, and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements. This schedule is the responsibility of the management of
the University. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audits of
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the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects, when
considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated September 13,
2002 on our consideration of the University’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be
read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.
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Rutgers, The State University of New Jersey

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
¥FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Using This Annual Report

The University’s financial report includes three basic financial statements: the Statement of Net Assets, the Statement
of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets, and the Statement of Cash Flows. These financial statements are
prepared in accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) principles. The University adopted
GASB Statement No. 35, “Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for Public
Colleges and Universities”, as amended by GASB Statements No. 37, “Basic Financial Statements — and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments: Omnibus” and No. 38, “Certain Financial
Statement Note Disclosures”. These statements establish standards for external financial reporting for public colleges
and universities. The financial statements presented in prior years focused on the accountability of funds, while these
statements focus on the financial condition of the University, the results of operations, and cash flows of the University
as a whole. The financial statements for fiscal year 2001 have been restated in conformity with these statements and
are included for comparative purposes.

Some significant changes to note are as follows:

e Revenues and expenses are now consolidated for all fund groups and are categorized as either operating or non-
operating. GASB 35 requires that state appropriations, gifts and investment income be presented as non-operating
revenue. As a result, public institutions will generally show an operating deficit.

e Scholarships and fellowships applied to student accounts as a reduction of their account are now shown as a
reduction of student tuition and fees, and residence fee revenue. Stipends and other direct payments to students are
presented as student aid expense. Previously, all scholarships and fellowships were presented as student aid
expense. For the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001, scholarships and fellowships totaled $116.6 million and
$104.7 million respectively, of which $91.2 million and $83.3 million was applied to student accounts.

¢ Proceeds from the William D. Ford Federal Direct Loan Program have been excluded from federal grant and
contract revenue and student aid expense. These proceeds are now reported as tuition and fee, and residence fee
revenue received from third parties. Previously, all funds received by this program were reported as federal grant
and contract revenue as well as student tuition and fee and residence fee revenue. All aid issued from this program
was also presented as student aid expense. The total William D. Ford Direct Loans issued was $116.5 million and
$110.4 million during the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001 respectively.

¢ Capital expenditures are not presented as expenditures on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Assets. Instead, depreciation expense is presented as an operating expense. In the former Statement of
Current Funds Revenues, Expenditures and Other Changes, the cost of acquiring capital assets, such as land,
buildings and equipment, were included as expenditures of the appropriate functional area. In addition, capital
expenditures from plant funds were reported on the former Statement of Changes in Fund Balances as
expenditures from unexpended plant funds. Total capital expenditures amounted to $136.8 million and $96.5
million in 2002 and 2001 respectively, of which $28.6 million and $24.1 million were from current funds.



o Principal payments on University debt are also not presented on the new Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Assets. Previously, a transfer for the payment of principal and interest was reported on the former
Statement of Current Funds Revenues, Expenditures and Other Changes. The actual principal payment was
reported as debt retirement on the Statement of Changes in Fund Balances under plant funds. The total principal
payment for 2002 and 2001 was $17.9 million and $17.2 million respectively.

o The Statement of Net Assets replaces the former Balance Sheet. This statement does not show fund balances but
rather presents the institution's net assets. The difference between the University’s assets less its liabilities is the
University’s net assets and represents those assets remaining at the end of the year. A significant part of those net
assets is the University’s capital assets in the form of property, plant and equipment.

Statement of Net Assets

The Statement of Net Assets presents the financial position of the University at the end of the fiscal year and includes

all assets (current and non-current), liabilities (current and non-current) of the University and net assets (the difference
between total assets and total labilities). Net assets is one indicator of the financial condition of the University, while
the change in net assets is an indicator of whether the overall financial condition has improved or worsened during the
year.

Current assets include unrestricted cash and cash equivalents, investments that mature within a year, receivables and
pledges due within a year, inventories and other short-term assets. Non-current assets include unrestricted investments
that mature in more than a year, as well as all cash and cash equivalents and investments that are restricted by donors
or external parties as to their use. Receivables and pledges deemed to be collectable in more than a year are also
included as non-current.

Current liabilities include all liabilities that are payable within the next fiscal year. Deferred revenues, principally from
summer programs, are also presented as current liabilities. Liabilities that are due to be paid beyond the next fiscal
year are reported as non-current liabilities.

Net assets consist of three major categories. The first category, invested in capital assets, net of debt, provides the
institution’s equity in property, plant and equipment. The next category is restricted net assets, which is divided into
two categories, non-expendable and expendable. Non-expendable net assets are those resources that have been set
aside and invested as required by the provider of the resources. These funds are not available for expenditures, but
rather must be invested in perpetuity with the earnings on those investments to be used as specified by the external
entity at the time the resources are received. Expendable restricted net assets are available for expenditure by the
University but must be spent for purposes as specified by external entities. The final category is unrestricted net
assets. Unrestricted net assets are available to the institution for any lawful purpose. Substantially all of the
University’s unrestricted net assets have been designated by the governing boards or management to support specific
programs such as student activities, research projects, continuing education and summer programs, agricultural
experiment station activities, junior year abroad programs, auxiliary enterprises and other self-supporting organized
activities relating to educational departments as well as capital projects. Many of these designations result from the
funds being earned through special purpose fees charged for the specific purposes. The University, therefore, has an
obligation to its students to maintain these funds for the purposes that they were received.



A summarized comparison of the University's assets, liabilities and net assets at June 30, 2002 and 2001 is as follows
(thousands of dollars):

2002 2001
Assets
Current assets S$337.427 $367,569
Non-current assets:
Endowment, restricted and other
non-current cash and investments 556,355 488,778
Property, Plant and Equipment, net 1,396,470 1,307,600
Other assets 43,603 36,196
Total assets 2,333,855 2,200,143
Liabilities
Current liabilities 158,000 140,485
Non-current liabilities 488,548 476,574
Total liabilities 646,548 617,059
Net assets (assets less liabilities)
Invested in capital assets, net of debt 955,648 871,998
Restricted - expendable 279,787 236,289
Restricted - non-expendable 182,578 185,782
Unrestricted 269,294 289,015
Total net assets $1,687,307 $1,583,084

A review of the University’s statement of net assets at June 30, 2002 reflects an increase in total assets of $133.7
million. This increase was primarily due to an increase of $88.9 million in the University’s investment in property,
plant and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation. Included in this increase was the capitalization of the RUNet
2000 project, the Camden Community Park and the new Rutgers Integrated Administrative System (RIAS). Non-
current cash and Investments increased by $66.7 million as a result of the University’s allocation of the proceeds from
the Dormitory Safety Trust Fund, Equipment Leasing Fund and Higher Education Capital Improvement Program
bonds issued by the State. Once the State issues the bonds and deposits the proceeds in an account for the University,
the University recognizes the amount deposited as cash and investments. These funds will be used for capital
expenditures as required by these programs. Pledges receivable also increased by $8.7 million as a result of our
current capital campaign. Most other categories of current and non-current assets decreased.

Total habilities for the year increased by $29.5 million. The primary cause for the increase was due to an increase in
capitalized leases as a result of the Dormitory Safety Trust Program, the Equipment Leasing Fund and the Higher
Education Capital Improvement Program issued by the State of New Jersey. These programs resulted in a total
increase of $46.3 million to our outstanding debt obligation. This was offset by payments to our existing debt totaling
$24.9 million. Accounts Payable increased by $8.6 million primarily due to an accrual of $2.6 million for the payment
of sick leave to employees that retired under the early retirement incentive program.

Net assets increased by $104.2 million primarily as a result of the $83.7 million increase in the University’s invested in
capital assets. This increase is a result of a number of Higher Education Capital Improvement Program (HECIP)
projects, such as the renovations at the Douglass Developmental Disability Center, Camden Science Building, the
Douglass College Chemistry



Building, and the Engineering building. Restricted expendable net assets increased $43.5 million primarily due to an
increase in gifts received and additional pledges resulting from the Foundation’s activities with the Capital Campaign.

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Net Assets

The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Net Assets presents the revenues earned and the expenses
incurred during the year. Activities are classified as either operating or non-operating. Revenues received and
expenses incurred as a result of the University providing goods and services to its customers are considered operating.
Non-operating revenues are those received for which goods and services are not directly provided. The financial
reporting model classifies state appropriations and gifts as non-operating revenues. The operating deficit demonstrates
the University’s” dependency on state support and gifts. In addition, appropriation, grants and gifts received by the
University specifically for capital expenditures, as well as gifts received from donors as endowments, are reported as
other revenue. A summarized comparison of the University’s revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets for the
years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001 is as follows (thousands of dollars):

2002 2001
Operating revenues
Student tuition and fees (net of
scholarship allowance) $273,842 $258,426
Grants and contracts 287,246 260,718
Auxiliary enterprises 152,124 145,845
Other Operating revenues 35,654 31,399
Total operating revenues 748,866 696,388
Operating expenses 1,182,075 1,123,986
Operating loss (433,209) (427,598)
Non-operating revenues and expenses
State appropriations (including fringe
benefits paid directly by the state) 436,602 437,081
Gifts 35,067 23,878
Endowment and investment income 25,755 37,153
Unrealized loss on marketable
securities (29,179) (39,647)
Interest on capital asset related debt (23,577) (26,705)
Net other non-operating revenues and
expenses 1,869 (79)
Net non-operating revenues and expenses 446,537 431,681
Income before other revenues and
expenses 13,328 4,083
Other revenues and expenses 90,895 73,792
Increase in net assets 104,223 77,875
Net assets at beginning of year 1,583,084 1,505,209
Net assets at end of year $1,687,307 $1,583,084

The University’s net assets increased this year by $104.2 million with $73.1 million of this increase attributable to
capital appropriations, grants and gifts that were used to construct,

renovate or acquire capital assets. In addition, $17.8 million was received from donors to be added to the University’s
permanent endowment to generate income that the University will be able to use for specific programs.



Tuition and fees are reflected net of scholarship allowances. Scholarship allowances represent scholarships and
fellowships applied to student accounts for tuition and residence fees. These scholarships and fellowships are funded
through federal and state grant programs and gifts raised by the University. The University provided a total of $91.2
million of a total of $116.6 million of student aid directly to student accounts. The remaining $25.4 million was paid
to students and is reflected as student aid expense. Scholarship allowances allocated to tuition and fees amounted to
$70.5 million. Another $20.7 million was allocated to residence fees, which are included in auxiliary revenues.
Tuition and fees, net of scholarship allowances, increased $15.4 million.

Grant and contract activity continues to grow with an increase of $26.5 million this year. Federal and State funds
received as support for student aid are included as grant revenue. The University received an increase of $4.8 million
in federal support and $1.8 million in state support for student aid. The federal support increased primarily as a result
of an increase in the maximum amounts authorized under the Pell Grant Program that provided an additional $3.9
million to the University. The State support increased primarily due to an increase in Tuition Aid Grant awards this
year.

Federal grants for research increased by $11.2 million. This increase resulted primarily from several large grants
received this year; in particular, the University’s National Transit Institute received an increase of $4.0 million in their
award from the Federal Transit Administration, $4.1 million was received from the National Science Foundation for
the Macromolecular Structural Database project, and $2.4 million from the Healthcare Financing Administration for a
National Technical Assistance Exchange.

State support for research increased by $5.3 million this year. The University received two large awards from the State
Department of Commerce & Economic Development that account for the bulk of this increase; a grant of $1.5 million
for the Food Stamp Nutrition Program and a $1.0 million for the Chapen Hill Fiscal Impact Analysis.

Finally, non-governmental grants and contracts increased by $3.5 million. Therefore, total grant and contract revenue
from all three sources, federal, state and non-governmental, for research increased by $20.0 million. Asa result of this
increase in revenue, total expenditures for research increased by $20.7 million.

Auxiliary revenue, net of scholarship allowances, increased this year by $6.3 million while expenditures increased only
$3.1 million. The increase in revenue resulted primarily from an increase in housing and dining rates. The net
increase in revenues supports renovations to residence and dining facilities and permits planning for the anticipated
debt service increase in 2003. Debt service is not included in the operating expenses for auxiliaries.

Total state appropriations, including fringe benefits paid directly by the state, decreased $0.5 million. The
appropriation by the state for University operations actually decreased $6.0 million. This decrease was due to the
budget reduction made by the State as a result of the State’s budget imbalance this year. The University’s original
appropriation for the 2002 fiscal year was reduced by a total of $23.5 million, which resulted in an appropriation that
was $6.0 million lower than the preceding year. This decrease was offset by an increase in the state payments on
behalf of the University for fringe benefits of $5.5 million.

Expenditures for operation and maintenance of plant decreased by $3.9 million. Natural gas rates increased
significantly in the 2001 fiscal year causing a large increase in utility expenditures that year. This year rates moderated
causing a reduction in utility costs. General administrative and institutional expenses increased by $9.4 million. The
accrual for sick leave payments for individuals retiring under the State’s early retirement incentive program accounts
for $2.6 million of this increase. The remaining increase includes additional expenditures for the capital campaign,
RIAS, publications for undergraduate recruitment and additional fringe benefit costs.

As a result of the continuing reduction of interest rates, the University’s endowment and investment income decreased
by $11.4 million this year. In addition, the University had unrealized losses on its investments totaling $29.2 million.
In January of 2002, the Investment Committee of the Joint Boards adopted a revised asset allocation policy.
Alternative investments such as arbitrage, private equity, and real estate investment trusts are being added to diversify
the University’s investment portfolio.



The University also received a total of $66.9 million in additional appropriations and grants from the state for the
construction, renovation or acquisition of capital assets. Included in this total are Rutgers allocation of the proceeds of
the Higher Education Capital Improvement Program (HECIP) and the Equipment Leasing Fund (ELF) bonds issued by
the State. The HECIP bonds were primarily issued to help the State’s institutions of higher education address their
deferred maintenance backlog. The University received a total of $75.0 million and must pay 33% of the debt service
on these bonds or a total of $25.0 million. The balance is paid by the state and is reflected as capital funds from the
state. The State issued ELF bonds to finance additional equipment for laboratory and instructional facilities. The
University received a total of $22.3 million and is required to pay 25% of the debt service on the ELF bonds or a total
of $5.6 million. The remaining balance of $16.7 million paid by the state is included as capital funds from the state.

Statement of Cash Flows
The statement of cash flows provides additional information about the university’s financial results, by reporting the

major sources and uses of cash. A comparative summary of the statement of cash flows for the years ended June 30,
2002 and 2001 is as follows (thousands of dollars):

2002 2001

Cash received from operations $789,439 $726,386
Cash expended for operations (1,034,319) (991,301)

Net cash used in operating activities (244,880) (264,915)
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 384,671 406,363
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (77,319) (181,851)
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities (29,403) 44,632

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 33,069 4,229
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 75,239 71,010
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $108,308 $75,239

The University’s cash and cash equivalents increased by $33.1 million in fiscal 2002. Net cash used by capital and
related financing activities decreased by $104.5 million primarily as a result of the receipt of the proceeds of the
HECIP, DSTF and ELF bond issues. These proceeds will be used to renovate University facilities, install fire
suppression systems and acquire equipment for use in academic and research programs.

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities decreased by $21.7 million. This decrease resulted from a
decrease in state appropriations received of $12.2 million. This decrease is a due to the reduction imposed by the state
this year resulting in a $6.0 million decrease in the appropriation from that of the prior year, as well as the delayed
distribution of $6.2 million of the 2000 appropriation until July of 2000 thereby inflating the appropriation received in
fiscal 2001. Cash gifts received in 2002 also decreased by $9.5 million. The Foundation received an endowment of
$10.0 million in fiscal 2000 for the Zimmerli Art Museum, which represented a substantial portion of the gifts received
that year. While the University has received over $50.0 million in non-capital gifts this year, there were no similar gift
of this magnitude received this year.



Net cash provided by investing activities decreased by $74.0 million. As a result of market conditions in 2002,
investment income decreased by $10.2 million in 2002. In addition, primarily due to the reduction in the state
appropriation to the University, additional University resources were used to fund operations this year resulting in the
sale of operating investments.

Capital and Debt Activities

In order to meet the needs of the University’s academic and research activities, the University must continually
reinvest resources in its capital assets to maintain adequate facilities for these programs. The University is
implementing a capital planning process that will identify and prioritize our capital needs.

Capital asset increases totaled $163.1 million in 2002, as compared to $182.8 in 2001. Capital additions primarily
comprise replacement, renovation and new construction of academic and research facilities, as well as significant
investments in equipment, including information technology. Several major projects completed during 2002 include:

Completion of the RU Net 2000 project, which wired, upgraded and expanded the University’s electronic computer
network.

Completion of the Camden Community Park that provides athletic and recreational fields for the University and the
City of Camden.

These additions were funded primarily with the proceeds of bonds and capital appropriations from the State under the
Higher Education Capital Improvement Program, the Dormitory Safety Trust Fund and the Equipment Leasing Fund.
As of June 30, 2002, the University had various projects under construction or in the design stage. Significant projects
include:

A new facility to provide laboratory space for the Department of Genetics and the New Jersey Center for Biomaterials
to be constructed on the Busch Campus. The project will also include a multi purpose atrium to provide a central
meeting place for the Division of Life Sciences.

A new facility on the Busch Campus for Biomedical Engineering. This facility will provide conference and classroom
space, research laboratories, laboratory support facilities, teaching laboratories, faculty office and computer facilities.
Expansion of Olson Hall on the Newark Campus to create a research and instructional facility for the life sciences
program. This expansion will provide state-of-the-art laboratories, conference rooms, classroom space and faculty
offices for the Biological Sciences and Chemistry disciplines.

Renovations to the Wright-Rieman building on the Busch Campus. This project includes the renovation of
laboratories for the Chemistry and Geo-Sciences departments as well as extensive improvements to the buildings
infrastructure.

In 2002, the University refinanced a portion of its general obligation refunding bonds Series 1992A and its revenue
refunding bonds Series R. As a part of this refinancing, the University entered into a swap agreement with Morgan
Guaranty Trust Company of New York. Under the terms of this agreement, the University pays a fixed rate of 3.96%
to and receives variable rate payment from Morgan. The University has been able to reduce its debt service costs as a
result of this refinancing and rate swap. The actual savings this year totaled $2.6 million. The deferred charge netted
against the University’s debt liability reflected in the Statement of Net Assets results from the additional funds needed
to establish the debt service escrow required to pay off the refinanced bond issues, Series R and 1992 Series A, through
the time that they can be called.



Economic Outlook

As the State University of New Jersey, the appropriation from the State is a very important part of University’s
funding. The recent economic crisis experienced by the State has resulted in an appropriation to the University for
fiscal year 2003 at the same level as the fiscal 2002 appropriation. With increasing costs, particularly resulting from
contractual obligations with faculty and staff, the University faces critical funding issues this year. The University has
addressed these funding challenges through various means such as the elimination of positions and reduction of other
costs, increases in tuition and fee charges, reallocation of University reserves, fundraising and the use of debt
financing.

Current indications are that the state economy is improving modestly. While the unemployment rate of 5.6% is higher
than last year’s, it is lower than other states in the region and the national average. In addition, the Gross State Product
per employee is 27.0% higher than the U.S. average and New Jersey ranks 2" among all the states indicating a highly
productive economy.

In April 2000, the Boards of the University endorsed a major capital campaign. While most fundraising campaigns
have experienced difficulty as a result of the unfortunate events that occurred on September 11, 2001, the University’s
foundation has received significant pledges towards their goal of $500.0 million. The Foundation has currently
received pledges totaling $425.8 million. The campaign will conclude in June 2004. Volatile economic conditions
continue to make fundraising difficult, however, steady progress continues to be made toward this goal.

The University's bond rating was upgraded by Moody’s from A1 to Aa3 in fiscal 2001 during the recent refunding of
its revenue refunding bonds Series R and general obligation refunding bonds 1992 Series A. The University is also in
the process of issuing new debt to help finance the construction of several new research facilities for our Genetics and
Life Sciences program and the Biomaterials program. This bond issue will also provide funds to cover the
University’s commitment under the Higher Education Capital Improvement Program. While Moody’s recently
downgraded the State of New Jersey’s rating from Asl to Aa2, both Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s maintained their
positive outlook for the University during their review of this new debt offering.

On February 1, 2002, Dr. Francis L. Lawrence announced his decision to resign as President of Rutgers University.
The Board of Governors immediately began steps to select a new president. In April, a presidential search team was
announced to commence the selection process. On October 3, 2002, the Board of Governors suspended the search
pending completion of the report by the Commission on Health Science Education and Training. This commission
was established on March 6, 2002 by Governor James E. McGreevey to review all aspects of health education in New
Jersey. The Board will resume the search after it has a chance to assess the impact of the report on the University.
Norman Samuels, former provost of the University's Newark campus, has been appointed acting President in the
interim.

This fall the University projects a total enrollment of 50,850 students, exceeding the highest enrollment 0f 50,350
students reached last year. As a result, new undergraduate students attending day-time colleges 1s expected to be 8,700
students this fall. The number of students applying to Rutgers continues to rise. The University received a total of
39,404 applications from new and transfer students or an increase of 4.8% over last year.
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Rutgers, The State University of New Jersey

Statement of Net Assets

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002
(WITH COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS FOR 2001}

(doitars in thousands}

Total Total
2002 2001
ASSETS: _—
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $36,532 $14,894
Short Term investments 216.493 246,076
Accounts Receivable (net) 59,406 50114
Students' Note Receivable (net) 7,850 8,921
Pledges Receivable (net) 4674 4,969
Inventaries 4,015 3,724
Prepaid Expenses and Deferred Charges 5.813 7172
Construction Costs Reimbursable 2.644 22,699
Total Current Assets 337.427 367,569
Neoncurrent Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 71.776 60,345
Endowment Investments 347988 347,093
investments 136,591 81,340
Students' Notes Receivable (net) 28,543 27,626
Pledges Receivable (net) 12.396 3.355
Bond Issuance Costs 2,664 5,215
Property. Plant & Equipment (net of depreciation) 1.396.470 ’ 1,307.600
Total Noncurrent Assets 1,996,428 1,832,574
TOTAL ASSETS $2.333,855 $2,200,143
LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses $92.460 $83.908
Deferred Revenue 32,325 29,132
Payroll Withhoidings 65.958 6,117
Other Payables 1,228 1.219
Annuities Payable 894 1,083
Long-Term Liabilities - Current Portion 24.135 19,046
Total Current Liabilities 158,000 140,485
Noncurrent Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 11.410 10.155
Annuity Payables 5.592 4,948
Long-Term Liabilities 471,548 461,471
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 488,548 476,574
TOTAL LIABILITIES 646.548 617,059
NET ASSETS:
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 955,648 871,998
Restricted for
Nonexpendable
Endowment 182,578 185,782
Expendable
Annuity and Life Income 5,383 5.659
Quasi Endowment 61,587 61,206
Term Endowment 24,918 25,269
Loans 37.890 37.438
Capital Projects 29,480 3,426
Debt Service 5,243 8,635
Other 115,286 93.656
Unrestricted 269,294 289.015
TOTAL NET ASSETS 1,687,307 1,583.084

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 52.333.855 52,200,143

See accompanying notes o the financial statements
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Rutgers, The State University of New Jersey

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(WITH COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS FOR 2001)

(dollars in thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES

Student Tuition and Fees (net of scholarship
allowances of $70.531 in 2002 and $64.143 in 2001)

Fedcral Appropriations

Federal Grants & Contracts

State & Municipal Grants & Contracts
Nongovernmental Grants & Contracts

Auxiliary Enterprises (net of scholarship allowances of $20.712 in

2002 and S19.160 in 2001)
Other Operating Revenues
Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Educational and General:
Instruction
Sponsored Research
Other Separately Budgeted Research
Other Sponsored Programs
Extension and Public Service
Libraries
Student Services
Operations and Maintenance of Plant
General Administration and Institutional
Student Aid
Depreciation
Disposal of Plant Facilitics

Auxiliary Enterprises

Other Expenses

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income(Loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES(EXPENSES)

State Appropriations

Fringe Benefits Paid Directly by the
State of New Jersey

Gifts

Endowment and Investment Income

Unrealized Gains(Loss) on Marketable
Securities

Interest on Capital Asset Related Debt

Other Nonoperating Revenues
Net Nonoperating Revenues

Income before Other Revenues and Expenses

Capital Appropriations

Capital Grants and Gifts

Additions to Permanent Endowments
Net Increase in Net Assets

NET ASSETS
Net Asscts - Beginning of the Year

Nect Assets - End of the Year
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Total
2002

$273.842
7.079
146.422
85.256
55,508

152,124
28.575
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145.845
24.052

748.860

403.791
122,990
63,960
54.420
27,238
32,094
46,463
94.468
91.904
25403
73,166
762
143,623
1,193

696.388

391.331
106.841
62.560
49,896
26.262
31,746
45,527
98,368
82,534
21.441
65,449
1,066
140.500
465

1,182,075

1.123.986

(433.209)

336,289

100,313
35,007
25,755

(29,179)
(23,577)
1.869

(427.598)

446,537

342,300

94,781
23.878
37,153

(39,647)
(26,705)
(79

13,328

66,907
6,197
17,791

431,681

104,223

1,583.084

4,083
15,022
36,884
21,886

$1.687.307

77875

1,.505.209

$1.583.084




Rutgers, The State University of New Jersey

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended June 30, 2002 and June 30, 2001

(Dollars in Thousands)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Tuition and fees
Research grants and contracts
Federal appropriations
Payments to employees
Payvments for benefits
Payments to suppliers
Payments for utilities
Pavments for scholarships and fellowships
Collection of loans to students and employees
Auxiliary enterprise receipts:
Housing
Dining
Athletics
Parking
Other receipts
Paymeents to annuitants
Other receipts
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
State appropriations

Gifts for other than capital purposes

Private gifts for endowment purposes

Distnibutions to Douglass Assoc Alumni
Distributions to others

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from capital debt and leases
Capital appropriations

Capital grants and gifts received
Purchases of capital assets and construction
Principal paid on capital debt and leases
Interest paid on capital debt and leases
Debt funded by outside parties

Debt defeasement

Underwriter's discount

Series 02A cost of issuance payments
Other income

Net cash used by financing activities

Cash Flows froem Investing Activities

Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments
Interest on investments

Purchase of investments

Net cash provided by investing activities

Netinerease in cash
Cash - beginning of the year
Cash - end of the year

Reconciliation of net operating revenues (expenses) to

net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Opverating income (loss)

2002 2001
$339.853 $320.149
299,022 257,764

6.331 6.243
(430,347) (409.528)
(215.006) (212.569)
(292.695) (273.732)

(11.721) (47.859)
(54.350) (47.618)
9,030 7823
14,591 42,635
27952 26,723
7.181 6.963
5,146 4,653
21,369 21,537
(893) (1.063)
29857 32955
(244.880) (264.915)
335,955 348.113
23,095 26,137
27,523 33,365
(1,792) (519)
(110) (733)
381,671 406,363
158,694 2,064
66,009 9,484
20,796 1,873
(159,926) (153,210)
(18.125) (17.705)
(24,357) (26,334)
982 1,034
(121,329) ;
(202) -
(433) A
572 943
(77,319) (181.851)
4,160,920 3,813,309
26,579 36,792
(4.216,902) (3,805,469)
(29,403) 44,632
33,009 4,229
75.239 71,010
$108.308 $75.239
(5433.200) (§427.598)
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Rutgers, The State University of New Jersey

Statement of Cash Flows
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2002
(WITH COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS FOR 2001)

{dollars in thousands)

2002 2001
Reconciliation of net operating revenues (expenses) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) ($433,209) ($427,598)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Fringe Benefits Paid by the State of New Jersey 100,313 94,781
Depreciation 73,166 65,449
Payment in lieu of taxes 700 700
Adjustment of actuarial liability for annuities payable 58 (924)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables, net 603 (3,479)
Notes Receivable, net 154 (837)
Inventories (291) 1,392
Prepaid Expenses 1,354 (1,581)
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 9,782 4,582
Other payables (2,104) 1,819
Deferred revenue 3,097 2,441
Payroll Withholdings 841 (5650)
Other 656 (1,110)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities ($244.,880) ($264,915)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Rutgers, The State University of New Jersey

Notes to the Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING POLICIES
Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of Rutgers, the State University of New Jersey (the “University™) have been prepared on the
accrual basis of accounting and in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”). The University reports as a special purpose government
engaged only in business type activities as defined in GASB Statement No. 35 “Basic Financial Statements — and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for Public Colleges and Universities”

GASB Statement No. 35 requires that the financial statements be presented on a comprehensive entity-wide basis,
reporting the University as an economic unit, rather than in the fund-group perspective previously required. Therefore
the three financial statements; Statement of Net Assets, Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
and the Statement of Cash Flows, have been prepared consolidating all fund groups.

The University has the option to apply all Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) pronouncements issued
after November 30, 1989, unless FASB conflicts with GASB. The University has elected to not apply FASB
pronouncements issued after the applicable date.

Reporting Entity

The University’s financial statements and notes thereto include the financial statements of the Rutgers University
Foundation (the “Foundation™). The Foundation was formed to aid the University in obtaining private funds and other
resources to meet the needs and achieve the goals of the University. Although the Foundation is a legally separate,
non-profit corporation, it exists for the benefit of the University and is considered a component unit of the University.
Its balances and transactions were blended with those of the University for reporting purposes, in accordance with
GASB Statement No. 14, “The Financial Reporting Entity.”

Under the law, the University is an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey with a high degree of autonomy.
However, under GASB Statement No. 14, the University is considered a component unit of the State of New Jersey for
financial reporting purposes. Accordingly, the University’s financial statements are included in the State of New
Jersey’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, and all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three
months or less. (cash on deposit with money market funds, treasury bills and repurchase agreements.) Cash and cash
equivalents that are externally restricted to make debt service payments, maintain sinking or reserve funds, or to
purchase or construct capital or other noncurrent assets are classified as noncurrent assets in the Statement of Net
Assets.

Investments

Investments are recorded at fair value in the Statement of Nets Assets. The year-to-year change in the fair value of
investments held in each fund group is reported in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets.
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The fair value of investments is based on the last sale price on the last business day of the fiscal year as quoted by an
industry standard pricing service. Securities for which no sale was reported as of the close of the last business day of
the fiscal year are valued by this pricing service based on market evaluations using standard trade publications and
other quote devices. Investments with a maturity greater than one year are classified as noncurrent assets in the
Statement of Net Assets.

Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) are included in Unrealized Gains (Losses) on Marketable Securities in the
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets.

Funds Held in Trust

Funds held in trust by others and not in the possession of, nor under the control of, the University are not included in
the University’s cash and investments. The market value of such funds aggregated approximately $52.1 million at
June 30, 2002 ($55.8 million in 2001). Income derived from such irrevocable trust funds held by others, aggregating
approximately $1.7 million in 2002 and $1.8 million in 2001, is reported in the accompanying financial statements as
nonoperating revenues.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost or market. Cost is determined principally on a first-in, first-out basis.
Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment consists of land, buildings, land improvements and infrastructure, equipment,
construction in progress, art collections and patents. Property Assets are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition, or
fair market value on the date of gift if donated, and are shown net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation on
buildings, land improvements and infrastructure, and equipment is calculated using the straight line method over the
assets” estimated useful lives, ranging from 5 to 50 years. Beginning in 2002, patents are amortized using the sum-of-
the-years digits method over the remaining legal life of the patent. Library books totaling approximately 4.8 million
volumes have not been capitalized.

Deferred Revenues and Deferred Charges

Deferred revenues and deferred charges include summer session activity which will be recognized as revenue and

expense in current funds in the following fiscal year. (Deferred charges also include the discount on certain University
bond issues which will be amortized in plant funds over the terms of the respective bond issues.)

Net Assets

Net assets is the difference between the University’s assets and its liabilities. GASB Statement No. 35 requires that
these resources be classified for accounting and reporting purposes into four categories as follows:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt represents the University’s total investment in capital assets, net of
outstanding debt obligations related to those capital assets.

Restricted net assets — expendable includes all resources in which the University is legally or contractually obligated to
spend the resources in accordance with restrictions imposed by external third parties.

Restricted net assets — nonexpendable consist of endowment and similar type funds in which donors or other outside
sources have stipulated, as a condition of the gift instrument, that the principal is to be maintained inviolate and in

perpetuity, and invested for the purpose of producing income, which may either be expended or added to principal.

Unrestricted net assets represent resources available to the University for educational and
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general operations. These resources are derived from student tuition and fees, state appropriations, and sales and
services of educational departments and auxiliary enterprises. Auxiliary enterprises and several academic programs,
such as summer session and continuing education, are substantially self-supporting activities that provide services for
students, faculty and staff.

Student Aid

Student Aid includes payments made directly to students in the form of scholarships, fellowships or stipends. Any aid
applied directly to the students account in payment of tuition and fees, housing charges and dining services is reflected
as a scholarship allowance and is deducted from the University’s revenues. Certain governmental grants, such as Pell
grants, and other Federal, State or nongovernmental programs, are recorded as operating revenues in the University’s
financial statements. To the extent that revenues from such programs are used to satisfy tuition and fees and other
student charges, the University has recorded a scholarship discount and allowance.

The University distributes loans to students under the Federal Direct Student Loan Program. Under this program, the
U.S. Department of Education makes interest subsidized and unsubsidized loans, through schools, directly to students.
During the year ended June 30, 2002, the University disbursed $116.5 million ($110.4 million in 2001) under the
Federal Direct Loan Program. Direct student loans receivable are not included in the University’s Statement of Net
Assets since they are repayable directly to the U.S. Department of Education.

The University also distributes funds on behalf of the Federal and State governments to students under the Federal Pell
Grant Program and the State of New Jersey Tuition Aid Grant Program, the Educational Opportunity Fund and the
Garden State Scholarship Program. The activity of these programs is reflected in the accompanying financial
statements as operating revenues and expenditures.

Encumbrances

The University maintains an encumbrance system for tracking outstanding purchase orders and other commitments for
materials or services not received during the year. At year-end, encumbrances totaled $210.5 million, which represents
the estimated amount of expenses ultimately to result if unperformed contracts in process at June 30, 2002 are
completed. Approximately $61.6 million of the total is committed for capital projects.

Encumbrances outstanding at June 30, 2002 do not constitute expenses or liabilities and are not reflected in the
financial statements.

Income Taxes

The University is exempt from income taxes on related income pursuant to Federal and State tax laws as an
instrumentality of the State of New Jersey.

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS
Cash and Cash Equivalents

The cash and cash equivalents balance at June 30, 2002 includes a negative cash book balance of $7.9 million resulting
from the use of controlled disbursement bank accounts. The actual amount of cash on deposit in the University’s bank
accounts at June 30, 2002 was $15.3 million. Of this amount, $0.7 million was insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation, $12.9 million was secured by the State of New Jersey Governmental Unit Deposit Protection
Act and S$1.7 million was uninsured and uncollateralized. Cash equivalent investments are categorized by credit risk in
the table below.
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Investments

The Board of Governors and the Board of Trustees, through a Joint Investment Committee, have authority over the
investment of University funds. Professional investment managers are engaged by the University to manage the
investment of funds in accordance with the investment policies and objectives established by the Joint Investment
Committec. Under current policies, investment managers may invest only in investment grade marketable securities.
In addition, under the terms of the University’s bond indentures, bond proceeds and debt service funds may be invested
and reinvested only in obligations which will by their terms mature on or before the date funds are needed for

expenditure or withdrawal.

The University’s investments at June 30, 2002 are categorized by credit risk in the table below. Credit risk pertains to
custodial risk, which is the risk that the University will not be able to recover the value of investment or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party if the counterparty to the investment transaction fails. Credit
risk should not be confused with market risk, which is the risk that the market value of a security may decline. There
are three categories of credit risk as defined in GASB Statement No. 3, “Deposits with Financial Institutions,

Investments (including Repurchase Agreements), and Reverse Repurchase Agreements.”

Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or for which the securities are held by the University or

its agent in the University’s name.

Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty’s

trust department or agent in the University’s name.

Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty, or by
its trust department or agent but not in the University’s name. GASB Statement No. 3 also states that investments in
pools managed by other governments or in mutual funds should be disclosed but not categorized, because they are not
evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form.

Cash Equiaknts:
M oney M arket Funds
Repurchase Agrem ents

TotalCash Equiaknts

hvestm ents:
CommemxnlPaper
Demand Notes
US Govemm entD frectSecuries
US Govemm entAgency Securtes
State and County M untpalSecures
US Compomte DebtSecuries
Forgn Compomrte DebtSecurtes
US Copomte Equies
Forgn Comporte Equiks
Assetbacked Securtes
RealEstate

Totalhvestm ents

MutualFunds:
Cash Equyvaknts
Dom estr Equies
Dom estiz Bonds

Tow 1M utnalFunds

TotalCash Equiaknts and hvestm ents
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Category 1 Category 2 Category 3
Thsured Uninsured or Unsured or
or Unregistered In Unregistered not
Registered Uniersity's Name in University's Name Total

$8,626 $35,493 $35,781 $79,900
21,287 21,287
$8,626 $56,780 $35,781 $101,187
§72,248 $115,493 $187,741
36 635 36,635
33,739 31,532 65,271
34 518 87,400 121,918
652 652
40,369 12,769 53,138
4513 4,513
153,635 11,634 $36 475 201,744
2,539 2,539
6,302 58 6,360
441 441
$348,956 $295 521 $36 475 $680,952
$15,012
17,168
2,952
$35,132
5817271



Investments - Endowment Funds

The majority of endowment funds assets are combined into two separate investment pools. Each individual fund
subscribes to or disposes of units in the pools on the basis of the per-unit market value at the beginning of the three-
month period within which the transaction takes place. At June 30, 2002, the pooled assets had a total market value of
$290.7 million ($298.2 million in 2001). In addition, the aggregate market value of endowment funds assets separately
invested was $55.8 million at June 30, 2002 ($64.0 million in 2001).

The University employs a spending policy which provides for annual spending at a stated rate determined by the Joint
Investment Committee of the Board of Governors and the Board of Trustees. Income earned above the stated rate 1s
reinvested and added to the endowment principal, while any shortfall is covered by capital appreciation.

NOTE 3 - RECEIVABLES AND ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

Accounts receivable are shown net of the allowance for doubtful accounts and were comprised of the following at June
30, 2002 (dollars in thousands):

Accounts Net Net
Receivable Allowance 2002 2001
Government Grants Receivable
and Other Sponsored Programs $42,552 $500 $42,052 $46,594
Student Accounts Receivable 3,495 1,227 2,268 2,116
Other 15,759 673 15,086 10,404
Total $61,806 $2,400 $59,406 $59,114

Students’ notes receivable in the Statement of Net Assets are also shown net of the allowance for doubtful notes which
amounted to $3.8 million at June 30, 2002 ($3.9 million in 2001).

The allowances for doubtful accounts and notes are based upon management’s best estimate of uncollectible accounts
and notes at the Statement of Net Assets date, considering type, age, collection history and other appropriate factors.
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NOTE 4 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, Plant and Equipment consisted of the following for the year ended June 30, 2002 (dollars in thousands):

Balance Retirem ents/ Balnce
2001 Additons Capitalization 2002

Pwperty, P hntand Equipm entNotBeihg Deprecate

Land $38,052 $808 $252 $38,608

Capialzed Colectons 33,002 5,664 38,666

Constmicton h Progress 82,848 99,009 84,786 97,071
Total 153,902 105,481 85,038 174 345
Pwperty, Phntand Equim entBehg Deprchted

Land In provem ents 80324 77,646 157,970

Buidihgs 1,333,111 16,045 1,349,156

Equpm ent 450 446 48 663 9,163 489,946

htangbk Assets -Patents 28,525 28,525
Total 1,892,406 142 354 9,163 2025597
Less Accum ukted D eprechton

Land In povem ents 37,153 6,267 43420

Buidngs 387,664 29,330 416,994

Equpment 313,891 34 565 8,401 340,055

htangblk Assets -Patents 3,003 3,003
Totwal 738,708 73,165 8401 803 472
NetPmwperty, P Antand Equpm entBeihg Deprchted 1,153,698 69,189 762 1,222,125
Pmwpenty, P Bntand Equim ent fhet) $1,307,600 $174 670 $85,800 $1,396 470
NOTE 5 - LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2002 are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Baknce Balance Current
2001 Additons Retirem ents 2002 Porton

Bonds, Lease and Notes Payabk

G enerml10 blgaton Bonds Payabk $243 460 $110,138 $60,319 $293 279 $12,007

Revenue Bonds Payabk 160,855 77,005 83,850 5,580

Lease Oblgatbns 74 525 46,280 3,880 116,925 6,495

Notes Payabk 1677 50 1,627 53
TotalLong-Tem Labiies — 5480517 — SI56 418 5141 ,254 54956381 524,135

The General Obligation Bonds Payable is net of $5.3 million of deferred charges related to Series 2002A.
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Notes Payable

Notes payable at June 30, 2002 and 2001 consist of an unsecured note payable to the U.S. Department of Education
with interest at 5.50%, final instaliment due January 1, 2021.

The University has an unsecured $20.0 million line of credit with a bank to be used for interim financing requirements.
The amount available under the line of credit is reduced by a $.2 million letter of credit which is used for interim
financing of construction projects and as collateral for certain insurance policies. No portion of the line of credit is in
use, and no funds have been drawn on the letter of credit as of June 30, 2002 or 2001.

Bonds Payable

A summary of bonds issued and outstanding at June 30, 2002 and 2001 is as follows (dollars in thousands):
Outstanding

Date Original June 30,
Of Series Amount 2002 2001

Revenue Refunding Bonds:

Series R, 6.51% effective, due serially to May 1, 2009

and term bonds due May 1, 2018 Feb. 1, 1992 $90,655 $71,685

Series S, 5.11% effective, due serially to May 1, 2014 Apr. 15, 1993 35,170 $19,245 21,355

Series T, 5.34% effective, due serially to May 1, 2016 Apr. 15, 1993 36,270 26,755 28,015

Series U, 4.89% effective, due serially to May 1, 2021 Dec. 1, 1997 40,015 33,605 35,035
Total Revenue Refunding Bonds 202,110 79,605 156,090
Revenue Bonds:

Series E, 3.75%, due serially to May 1, 2016 May 1, 1967 1,200 585 615

Series F, 3.00%, due serially to May 1, 2016 Nov. 1, 1967 2,350 1,060 1,120

Series H, 5.90% effective, due serially to May 1, 2007 Nov. 1, 1870 8,300 2,600 3,030

Total Revenue Bonds 11,850 4,245 4,765

General Obligation Refunding Bonds:
1992 Series A, 6.51% effective, due serially to May 1, 2007

and term bonds due May 1, 2018 Feb. 1, 1892 94,370 26,605 76,410
1993 Series 1, 5.32% effective, due serially to May 1, 2015 Apr. 15, 1993 10,275 7,320 7,710
1993 Series A, 5.12% effective, due serially to May 1, 2014

and term bonds due May 1, 2019 Oct. 1, 1993 81,600 62,290 64,615
2002 Series A, 3.96% effective, due serially to May 1, 2018 Feb.1,2002 110,000 110,000

Total General Obligation Refunding Bonds 296,245 206,215 148,735

General Obligation Bonds:

1993 Series B, 5.37% effective, due serially to May 1, 2016 Apr. 15, 1993 28,020 21,645 22,680
1997 Series A, 5.34% effective, due serially to May 1, 2022
and term bonds due May 1, 2027 June 1, 1997 25,385 23,295 23,750
1998 Series A, 4.89% effective, due serially to May 1, 2018
and term bonds due May 1, 2020, 2023 and 2029 Nov. 1, 1998 50,000 47,390 48,295
Total General Obligation Bonds 103,405 92,330 94,725
Total Bonds $613,610 $382,395 $404,315
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The Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series R-U, and the Revenue Bonds, Series E, F and H, were issued under an open-
ended indenture of trust dated May 1, 1967 to finance the construction of auxiliary enterprise facilities and to
consolidate previously outstanding bond indebtedness. Under the terms of the indenture, all bonds issued are direct
and general obligations of the University and are in no way an obligation of the State of New Jersey. All revenues
from auxiliary enterprise facilities constructed from the proceeds of the bonds, together with revenues from certain
other such facilities, are pledged to secure the indebtedness and must be applied to (1) annual interest and amortization
payments, (2) debt service reserve deficiencies, if any, (3) operating and maintenance expenses and (4) the funding of
repair and replacement reserves. The excess of funds, after satisfying these requirements, is available to the
University. The University has covenanted that so long as the bonds are outstanding it will not incur any other
indebtedness secured by a pledge of the facility revenues, nor sell, mortgage or otherwise dispose of such facilities.

The General Obligation Refunding Bonds, 1992 and 1993 Series A, and General Obligation Bonds, 1993 Series B,
1997 and 1998 Series A, were issued under an open-ended indenture of trust, dated May 1, 1987, as supplemented; the
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, 1993 Series 1, were issued under an indenture of trust, dated May 1, 1986, and
the General Obligation Refunding Bonds, 2002 Series A, were issued under an indenture of trust, dated February 1,
2002. These bonds were issued to finance a portion of the cost of the renovation, construction and equipping of certain
academic, research support and other facilities, as well as infrastructure development and land acquisitions of the
University. Under the terms of the indentures, all bonds issued are direct and general obligations of the University
and are in no way an obligation of the State of New Jersey.

In September 2001, the University entered into an interest rate swap agreement with the intention of lowering its
effective interest rate related to the $110.0 million of its 2002 Series A General Obligation Refunding Bonds. Based
on the swap agreement, the University owes interest calculated at a fixed rate of 3.96% to the counterparty to the swap.
In return, the counterparty owes the University floating rate interest based on the BMA Municipal Swap Index. Only
the net difference in interest payments is actually exchanged with the counterparty. The $110.0 million in bond
principal is not exchanged; it is only the basis on which the interest payments are calculated.

The swap terminates on February 4, 2018, but is cancellable at the option of the counterparty under certain
circumstances. In the unlikely event that the counterparty fails to perform under the contract, the University bears the

credit risk that payments due to the University may not be collected.

Debt service payments to maturity at June 30, 2002 are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Year Principal hterest Total
2003 517,920 518,268 536,188
2004 17,750 17,479 35,229
2005 18,630 16,685 35315
2006 18,415 15,843 34,258
2007 19,200 15,011 34 211
2008-2012 106 325 60,260 166,585
2013-2017 114,080 32,278 146 358
2018-2022 44 265 10,908 55,173
20232027 19,915 4 440 24 355
2028-2032 5,895 423 6,318
Total $382,395 $191 595 $573,990
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In February 2002, the 2002 Series A Bonds were issued to defease the University's outstanding Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series R, dated February 1, 1992, and $47.2 million of the General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 1992A,
also dated February 1, 1992. The proceeds of the 2002 Series A Bonds were used: (1) to deposit into two special
escrow funds to be held by the Trustee and sufficient to pay the principal, interest and redemption premium on the
Series 1992A and Series R Bonds and (ii) to pay certain administrative, legal, financing and incidental expenses
relating to the issuance of the 2002 Series A Bonds. The University completed the advance refunding to reduce its
total debt service payments over the next 16 years by $38.2 million and to obtain an economic gain (difference
between the present values of the old and new debt service payments less escrow funds used) of $15.7 million. The
difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt, $5.4 million, is being deferred
and amortized as interest expense through the year 2018 using the effective interest method. In 2002, $0.1 million has
been expensed leaving $5.3 million as deferred charges.

Capitalized Lease Obligations
Facilities Authority

Dormitories — Pursuant to the terms of a lease and agreement dated September 1, 1971 between the University and
the New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority (the “Facilities Authority”), the University transferred to the Facilities
Authority title to certain land, upon which dormitories have been constructed. In 1974, the Facilities Authority i1ssued
bonds in the aggregate amount of $6.7 million at an effective interest cost of 5.95% per annum, for the purpose of
providing long-term financing for the aforementioned facilities. Such bonds mature serially through 2008. In
accordance with the agreement, the University is required to pay an annual rental to the Facilities Authority over the
life of the agreement in amounts necessary to retire the bonds, including interest, provide sinking fund and reserve
account requirements and reimburse the Facilities Authority for its administrative costs. As security for its obligation
under the agreement, the University has pledged the revenues arising from the financed facilities. Upon retirement of
the bonds, title to the land and facilities will revert to the University. Accordingly, the land and facilities have been
capitalized with a corresponding liability classified as a capitalized lease obligation. At June 30, 2002, this liability
was $2.3 million ($2.6 million in 2001).

Higher Education Capital Improvement Fund (HECIP) -— Under the provisions of the State of New Jersey Higher
Education Capital Improvement Fund Act (the “HECIP Act™) of 1999 (P.L. 1999, c. 217), the University has been
allocated $169.0 million to help finance certain of its deferred maintenance and other capital needs. The funds are
provided through bonds issued by the Facilities Authority. The University will be obligated to pay one-third of the
debt service on the bonds when issued. On December 20, 2000, the Facilities Authority issued bonds, the University’s
portion of which amounted to $75.0 million. The bonds bear an effective interest rate of 5.06% per annum and mature
on September 1, 2020. Additional bonds will be issued in fiscal 2003 for the balance of the University’s allocation.

In accordance with the act, the University is required to make annual lease payments to retire 33.3% of the bonds,
representing the University’s portion, including interest. The State of New Jersey is obligated to pay the remaining
66.7% of the annual debt service. At June 30, 2002, the University had a capital lease obligation of $24.4 million
($5.4 million in 2001).

Dormitory Safety Trust Fund (DSTF) - Under the provisions of the Dormitory Safety Trust Fund Act (the “DSTF
Act”) (P.L. 2000, ¢.56), the University received a $29.0 million interest free loan to finance the installation of fire
suppression systems in buildings used as student dormitories. The New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority issued
two series of bonds on August 14, 2001 to finance these loans. Series 2001A (Tax Exempt) bears an effective interest
rate of 4.8% per annum and Series 2001B (Federally Taxable) bears an effective interest rate of 6.1% per annum. Both
series mature on March 1, 2016. As of June 30, 2002, the University had a capital lease of $29.0 million.
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Equipment Leasing Fund (ELF) - Under the terms of the Higher Education Equipment Leasing Fund Act of 1993
(ELF), the State issued bonds to finance additional equipment for laboratory and instructional facilities at state
institutions of higher education. The University received $22.3 million from this bond issue. The bonds were issued
on October 11, 2001 and bear interest at a rate of 3.089%. In accordance with this act, the University is required to
make annual lease payments to retire 25% of the University’s portion of the bonds, including mterest. The State of
New Jersey is obligated to pay the remaining 75% of the annual debt service. Title to all equipment purchased under
this lease agreement will be transferred to the University at the conclusion of the lease. As of June 30, 2002, the
University had a capital lease obligation of $5.6 million for equipment purchased under the terms of this agreement.

Housing Authority

In connection with a redevelopment project undertaken by the Housing and Urban Development Authority of the City
of New Brunswick (the “Housing Authority™), a series of agreements were entered into by the University, the Housing
Authority and Robert Wood Johnson University Hospital, Inc., the outcome of which was the construction of a student
apartment complex, parking deck, health club facility and multi-unit retail center. Pursuant to the terms of the capital
lease and agreement dated July 1, 1992 between the University and the Housing Authority, the Housing Authority
issued bonds in the aggregate amount of $55.3 million on July 23, 1992, at an effective interest rate of 6.23% per
annum, for the purpose of providing long-term financing for the project. On December 1, 1998, these bonds were
refinanced in the aggregate amount of $54.5 million, at an effective interest rate of 4.83% per annum. Such bonds
mature serially through 2024. In accordance with the agreement, the University is required to pay an annual rental to
the Housing Authority over the life of the agreement in amounts necessary to retire the University’s portion of the
bonds, including interest, to provide for sinking fund and reserve account requirements and to reimburse the Housing
Authority for its administrative costs. Upon retirement of the bonds, title to the student apartment complex, parking
deck, health club facility and the related common space will be transferred to the University. Accordingly, the land
and facilities have been capitalized with a corresponding liability classified as a capital lease obligation. At June 30,
2002, this liability was $46.2 million ($47.5 million in 2001). As discussed more fully below, a portion of this capital
lease obligation is being funded under a sublease agreement.

Hospital Sublease

In conjunction with the Housing Authority capital lease and agreement, the University simultaneously entered into a
sublease and agreement with the Robert Wood Johnson University Hospital, Inc. (the “Hospital”), dated July 1, 1992,
whereby the Hospital agreed to lease a portion of the parking facility from the University. The sublease provides for
an initial term of two years which commenced July 1992, renewable in six consecutive five year terms. In accordance
with the sublease, the Hospital is required to pay an annual rental to the University over the life of the agreement,
subject to termination payments to the University should the options to renew not be exercised. The payments
received under this sublease are being used by the University to cover a proportional amount of the lease payments due
to the Housing Authority. Upon retirement of the bonds, title to the Hospital’s portion of the parking deck will be
transferred to the Hospital. At June 30, 2002, the estimated present value of the Hospital sublease over the full lease
term, including renewal periods, amounted to $8.2 million ($8.4 million in 2001). Payments required under the lease
and agreement between the University and the Housing Authority are in no way conditional upon the receipt of
payments from the Hospital under the sublease and agreement.
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Development Authority

Pursuant to the terms of a lease and agreement dated September 1, 1993 between the University and the New Jersey
Economic Development Authority (the “Development Authority™), the University transferred to the Development
Authority title to certain land, upon which a facility was constructed to house the Visual Arts Department of the Mason
Gross School of the Arts, the Edward J. Bloustein School of Planning and Public Policy and the Center for Urban
Policy Research. On May 1, 1994, the Development Authority issued bonds in the aggregate amount of $17.6 million,
maturing serially through July 1, 2024, at an effective interest rate of 6.138% per annum. The bonds were issued for
the purpose of providing long-term financing for the construction of the aforementioned facility. Additional financing
of approximately $20.0 million was also provided by grants from The Port Authority of New York and New Jersey and
the State of New Jersey. In accordance with the lease and agreement, the University is required to pay an annual rental
to the Development Authority over the life of the agreement in amounts necessary to retire the bonds, including
interest, and reimburse the Development Authority for its administrative costs. Upon retirement of the bonds, title to
the land and facility will revert to the University. Accordingly, the University has recorded a capitalized lease
obligation for the debt financed portion of the project. At June 30, 2002, the outstanding balance of this obligation was
$15.4 million ($15.7 million in 2001).

Future lease payments (receipts) applicable to the aforementioned capital leases as of June 30, 2002 are as follows
(dollars in thousands):

Facilities Authority

DSTF DSTF Housing Hospital Development
Year Dormitories HECIP ELF (2001A) (2001B) Authorit Sublease Authority Total

2008 5461 $2,007 $940 $2,038 $32 53,663 (5652) $1,289 59,778
2004 462 1,994 939 2,040 33 3,664 (653) 1,283 9,762
2005 461 2,003 939 2,040 33 3,664 (652) 1,286 9,774
2006 464 2,004 940 2,040 33 3,659 (652) 1,282 9,770
2007 461 2,002 939 2,040 33 3,667 (653) 1,282 9,771
2008-2012 461 10,014 1,878 10,199 162 18,319 (3,262) 6,412 44,183
2013-2017 10,011 8,159 129 18,321 (3,261) 6,438 39,797
2018-2022 8,016 18,326 (3,262) 6,478 29,558
2023-2027 3,659 (653) 2,607 5,613
Total Lease Payments 2,770 38,051 6,575 28,556 455 76,942 {13,700) 28,357 168,006
Less Amount

Representing Interest 500 13,636 1,011 30,776 (5,508) 12,987 53,402
Present Value of Lease

Payments 82,270 $24,415 $5,564 $28,556 $455 $46,166 (8,192) $15,370 $114,604

Miscellaneous Equipment Leases

The University has entered into certain lease-purchase agreements for equipment which are principally for a duration
of one to five years depending on the application and financial advantage to the University. Such agreements are
essential to the normal operation of the University, and it is expected that these arrangements, where applicable, would
be renegotiated when financially advantageous. The payments of these agreements include a charge for interest at
various rates depending on each agreement. At June 30, 2002, the aggregate capitalized lease
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obligation associated with these agreements, which excludes future interest payments, is approximately $2.3 million
(53.0 million in 2001). The annual rentals for these capitalized lease obligations are provided for in the University’s
operating budget and in the aggregate are not considered material.

NOTE 6 - COMMITMENTS
At June 30, 2002, the estimated cost of capital projects under construction, in the design stage with approved sources
of funding, and in the design stage pending determination of sources of funding, aggregated approximately $413.2

million. Anticipated sources of funding for these projects are summarized as follows (dollars in thousands):

Total Project Funding

Additional
Funding

Received at Required at Estimated

June 30, 2002 June 30, 2002 Total Cost

Borrowing $50,000 $50,000 $100,000
State Bond Issues and Capital Appropriations 101,676 103,120 204,796
Gifts and Other Sources 84,035 24,385 108,420
Total $235,711 $177,505 $413,216

NOTE 7 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Retirement Plans

The University has primarily two retirement plans available to its employees, the State of New Jersey Public
Employees Retirement System, a defined benefit plan, and the Alternate Benefit Program, a defined contribution plan.
The State of New Jersey, in accordance with State statutes, makes employer contributions on behalf of the University
for these plans. Pension expense paid directly by the State of New Jersey for 2002 aggregated $27.8 million ($26.3 and
$27.1 million in 2001 and 2000, respectively) of which $5.3 million ($4.6 and $3.4 million in 2001 and 2000,
respectively) has been reimbursed to the State from amounts recovered from self-supporting operations and sponsored
programs. Reimbursement is based upon a composite fringe benefit rate provided by the State for all State plans. The
University has no direct pension obligation associated with the State plans, and no liability for such costs has been
reflected in the accompanying financial statements. Summary information regarding these plans is provided below.

Public Employees Retirement System (“PERS”)

Plan Description — PERS is a multiple-employer, public cost-sharing retirement system which is administered by the
State of New Jersey. The payroll for employees covered by PERS for the year ended June 30, 2002 was $150.3
million ($146.1 million in 2001).

University employees of a certain classification are required as a condition of employment to be members of PERS.
The formula for benefits is an annual allowance in the amount equal to years of service, divided by 55, times the final
average salary. Final average salary means the average of the salaries received by the member for the last three years
of membership service or the three highest fiscal years, whichever provides the largest benefit. Pension benefits fully
vest on reaching ten years of credited service. Members are eligible for retirement at age 60
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with no minimum years of service required. Members who have 25 years or more of credited service may also select
early retirement without penalty at or after age 55 and receive full retirement benefits. PERS also provides death and
disability benefits. Benefits are established by State statute.

Contributions — Covered University employees were required by PERS to contribute 3.00% of their annual
compensation during fiscal year 2002, The State contributes the remaining amounts necessary to pay benefits when
due. The State contribution is based upon annual actuarially determined percentages of total compensation of all active
members. The State’s annual contribution approximates the actuarially determined pension cost for the year.

Employees can also make voluntary contributions to two optional State of New Jersey tax-deferred investment plans,
the Supplemental Annuity Collective Trust (“SACT") and the Additional Contributions Tax Sheltered (“ACTS”)
programs. Both plans are subject to limits within the Internal Revenue Code.

Financial statements for the PERS are included in the State of New Jersey’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report,
which may be obtained by writing to the State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Office of Management and
Budget, CN 221, Trenton, NJ 08625-0221.

Alternate Benefit Program (“ABP”)

Plan Description — ABP is a multiple-employer, State retirement plan established as an alternative to PERS. The
payroll for employees covered by ABP for the year ended June 30, 2002 was $349.1 million ($331.1 million in 2001).

Faculty, professional and administrative staff, and certain other salaried employees are eligible to participate in ABP.
Employer (State) contributions vest on reaching one year of credited service. The program also provides long-term
disability and life insurance benefits. Benefits are payable upon termination at the member’s option unless the
participant is re-employed in another institution which participates in ABP.

Contributions — The employce mandatory contribution rate for ABP is 5.00% of base salary and is matched by the
State at 8.00% of base salary. Contributions can be invested with up to six investment carriers available under the
plan. Additional voluntary contributions may be made on a tax-deferred basis, subject to limits within the Internal
Revenue Code.

Other Retirement Plans

The University has a small number of employees enrolled in the State of New Jersey Police and Firemen’s Retirement
System (“PFRS”) and two Federal retirement plans, the Civil Service Retirement System (“CSRS™)and the Federal
Employees Retirement System (“FERS™). All three of the plans are defined benefit plans and cover the University’s
police (PFRS) and selected positions related to the University’s Cook College/New Jersey Agricultural Experiment
Station (CSRS or FERS). The University also has a small number of Foundation employees enrolled in a contributory
retirement plan under arrangements with Teacher’s Insurance and Annuity Association and College Retirement
Equities Fund (“TIAA-CREF”), which provides for the purchase of annuities for the covered employees. Participation
in all of these plans is limited, and the associated amounts are not significant.
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Post-Retirement Health Care Benefits

In addition to providing pension benefits, the State provides certain health care and life insurance benefits for the
University’s retired employees, in accordance with State statutes. Full health coverage is provided to eligible
employees retiring with 25 years of service credited on or before June 30, 1997 in one of the State of New Jersey
mandatory pension plans. Employees retiring with 25 years of service credited after June 30, 1997 may share in the
cost of the health care provided under the State Plan according to the terms specified in the appropriate bargaining unit
agreement in effect at the time the employee reaches 25 years of credited service. The rules governing the contribution
rate are the same as that for active employees. Since the costs of these programs are the responsibility of the State and
the retired employees, no expenditures or liabilities for these benefits are reflected in the University’s financial
statements.

Additional detailed information about these programs is provided in the State of New Jersey’s Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report.

Deferred Compensation Plan

University employees with membership in PERS, ABP or PFRS are eligible to participate in the State of New Jersey's
Employees Deferred Compensation Plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan
permits employees to tax defer and invest a portion of their base salary until future years. The deferred compensation
is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. The plan is
administered by the State of New Jersey. The plan does not include any matching employer (State) contributions. All
amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with those amounts and all income
attributable to those amounts, property or rights are held in trust by the State for the exclusive benefit of the
participating employees and their beneficiaries.

NOTE 8 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The University records a liability for compensated absences in accordance with GASB Statement No. 16, “Accounting
for Compensated Absences.” This liability amounted to $25.1 million as of June 30, 2002 ($24.3 million in 2001) and
is included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the accompanying financial statements. The liability 1s
calculated based upon employees’ accrued vacation time as of the balance sheet date, as well as accrued sick time
payable to retired employees.

Unused sick time which has been accumulated by cligible employees has not been accrued as it is payable only upon
retirement and is not subject to reasonable estimation. The pay out to retirees for unused accumulated sick time is
calculated at the lesser of 1/2 the value of earned time or $15,000.

NOTE 9 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The University manages property and liability risks through a combination of commercial insurance policies,
participation in a risk sharing pool and the use of deductibles and self-insured retentions, the most significant of which
provides for the payment of workers’ compensation benefits.

The University has accrued liabilities for self-insured retentions in the current funds. The accrued liabilities are based
on estimates by management and third party claims administrators and generally represent the present value of unpaid
claims, including estimates of claims incurred but not reported.

The risk sharing pool was formed by several universities to provide and arrange general liability, automobile liability
and property insurance for its shareholders on a group basis. The University’s annual payments to the pool for
insurance coverage are based on actuarial studies and are charged to current fund expenditures in the accompanying
financial statements.
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NOTE 10 - CONTINGENCIES

The University is a party to various legal actions arising in the ordinary course of its operations.  While it is not
feasible to predict the ultimate outcome of these actions, it is the opinion of management that the resolution of these
matters will not have a material adverse effect on the University’s financial statements.

The University receives funds from Federal, State and private agencies under grants and contracts for research, training
and other activities. The costs, both direct and indirect, charged to these grants and contracts are subject to audit and
possible disallowance by the sponsoring agency. It is the University’s belief that any disallowances or adjustments
would not have a significant effect on the University’s financial statements.

NOTE 11 - SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The University plans to issue General Obligation Bonds, 2002 Series B, in the aggregate amount of $50.0 million in
the fall of 2002. These bonds will be issued under the terms of an Indenture of Trust, dated February 1, 2002 as
supplemented. The proceeds of the 2002 Series B Bonds, together with certain other monies available to the
University, will be used to finance, in part, the costs of the construction of new buildings for the Department of
Biomedical Engineering and the Department of Human Genetics on the Busch Campus; the renovation of Olson Hall
on the Newark Campus to upgrade and expand laboratory space, conference room space, classroom space and faculty
offices for the Biological Sciences and Chemistry Departments; implementation of the Housing Fire Safety Program
mandating installation of automatic fire suspension systems in all student residences and certain environmental
remediation, health and safety and infrastructure support in accordance with State regulations; and the financing of
certain, deferred maintenance and other capital improvements in accordance with the State Higher Education Capital
Improvement Fund Act of 1999,
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RUTGERS, THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW JERSEY

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal
Program or Cluster CFDA Numbers
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Direct:
Agency for Healthcare Research & Quality
Research on Healthcare Costs, Quality and Outcomes 93.226
Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco & Firearms
Various 21.RD
Department of Agriculture
Agricultural Research_Basic and Applied Research 10.001
Biotechnology Risk Assessment Research 10.219
Cooperative Extension Service 10.500
Cooperative Forestry Assistance 10.664
Forestry Research 10.652
Grants for Agricultural Research, Special Research Grants 10.200
Grants for Agricultural Research_Competitive Research 10.206
Higher Education Challenge Grants 10.217
Initiative for Future Agriculture and Food Systems 10.302
Integrated Programs 10.303
International Training_Foreign Participant 10.962
Various 10.RD
Subtotal
Department of Commerce
Economic Development_Technical Assistance 11.303

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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$

Federal
Expenditures

142,384

7,956

11,984
53,537
3,499,440
166,004
18,321
3,367,242
780,655
44892
363,651
48,238
250,220

370,590

$

974,774

(33,511)

(Continued)



RUTGERS, THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW JERSEY

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal
Program or Cluster CFDA Numbers
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Direct:
Department of Commerce-EDA
Economic Development_Technical Assistance 11.303
Research and Evaluation Program 11.312
Various 11.RD
Subtotal
Department of Commerce-NOAA
Climate and Atmospheric Research 11.431
Coastal Zone Management Estuarine Research Reserves 11.420
Cooperative Science and Education Program 11.455
Sea Grant Support 11.417
Undersea Research 11.430
Various 11.RD
Subtotal
Department of Defense
Military Medical Research and Development 12.420
Various 12.RD
Subtotal
Department of Education
International Research and Studies 84.017
Undergraduate International Studies and Foreign Language 84.016
Various 84.RD
Subtotal

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

Federal
Expenditures

S 138,170
28,406
688

167,264

177,476
1,143,250
584,482
24,174
52,514
1,607,312

—— T T

3,589,208

28,942
227464

256,406

166,225
53,377

369,027

588,629

(Continued)



RUTGERS, THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW JERSEY

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal Federal
Program or Cluster CFDA Numbers Expenditures

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Direct:
Department of Energy

Office of Science Financial Assistance Program 81.049 $ 667,445
Various 81.RD 6,517,902
Subtotal 7,185,347

Department of Housing and Urban Development

Various 14.RD 4,415

Department of Justice-NIJ
Criminal Justice Research and Development_Graduate 16.562 12,206
Various 16.RD 170,528
Subtotal 182,734

Department of Labor
Various 17.RD 75,860

Department of the Interior-NPS
Various 15.RD 43,159

Department of the Interior-USGS

Assistance to State Water Resources Research Institutes 15.805 55,858
Various 15.RD B 1,975
(Continued)

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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RUTGERS, THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW JERSEY

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal Federal
Program or Cluster CFDA Numbers Expenditures

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Direct:
Department of the Interior-USGS
Subtotal $ 57,833
Department of Transportation-FAA
Aviation Research Grants 20.108 170,249
Various 20.RD 218,448
Subtotal 388,697
DHHS-HCFA
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) Research, 93.779 223,298
DHHS-PHS-AHRQ
Center for Research for Mothers and Children 93.865 199,502
Research on Healthcare Costs, Quality and Outcomes 93.226 69,540
Subtotal 269,042
DHHS-PHS-CDC
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention_Investigations 93.283 104,039
Various 93.RD 1,450
Subtotal 105,489
DHHS-PHS-FDA
Food and Drug Administration_Research 93.103 54,354
(Continued)

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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RUTGERS, THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW JERSEY

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal Federal
Program or Cluster CFDA Numbers Expenditures

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Direct:
DHHS-PHS-NIH
Biomedical Technology 93.371 $ 8,071
Cancer Biology Research 93.396 713,189
Cancer Cause and Prevention Research 93.393 1,276,323
Cancer Control v 93.399 347,526
Cancer Detection and Diagnosis Research 93.394 223,325
Cell Biology and Biophysics Research 93.821 2,436,365
Center for Medical Rehabilitation Research 93.929 20,379
Center for Research for Mothers and Children 93.865 480,334
Digestive Diseases and Nutrition Research 03.848% 489,947
Drug Abuse Research Programs 93.279 137,219
Fogarty International Research Collaboration Award 93.934 34,414
Head Start 93.600 4,246
Heart and Vascular Diseases Research 93.837 343,059
Human Genome Research 93.172 127,700
Kidney Diseases, Urology and Hematology Research 93.849 285,842
Oral Diseases and Disorders Research 93.121 179,125
Research Related to Deafness and Communication Disorders 93.173 238,977
Various 93.RD 1,220,177
Vision Research 93.867 47,938

Subtotal 8,614,156

DHHS-PHS-NIH-NCI

Cancer Biology Research 93.396 186,643

Cancer Cause and Prevention Research 93.393 348,721

Cancer Treatment Research 93.395 30,455

Various 93.RD 168,921

Subtotal 734,740
(Continued)

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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RUTGERS, THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW JERSEY

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal
Program or Cluster CFDA Numbers
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Direct:
DHHS-PHS-NIH-NCNR
Nursing Research 93.361
DHHS-PHS-NIH-NCRR
Various 93.RD
DHHS-PHS-NIH-NEI
Vision Research 93.867
DHHS-PHS-NIH-NIA
Aging Research 93.866
DHHS-PHS-NIH-NIAAA
Alcohol Research Career Development Awards for Scientists 93.271
Alcohol Research Programs 93.273
Various 93.RD
Subtotal
DHHS-PHS-NIH-NIAID
Allergy, Immunology and Transplantation Research 93.855
Microbiology and Infectious Diseases Research 93.856
Various 93.RD

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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Federal
Expenditures

$ 115,853
5,383
682,078
1,452,129
215,198
1,426,474

686
1,642,358

522,685
699,930
69,699
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RUTGERS, THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW JERSEY

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal
Program or Cluster CFDA Numbers
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Direct:
DHHS-PHS-NIH-NIAID
Subtotal
DHHS-PHS-NIH-NIAMSD
Arthritis, Musculoskeletal and Skin Diseases Research 93.846
DHHS-PHS-NIH-NICHD
Center for Research for Mothers and Children 93.865
Population Research 93.864
Subtotal
DHHS-PHS-NIH-NIDA
Career Development Awards 93.277
Drug Abuse Research Programs 93.279
Various 93.RD
Subtetal
DHHS-PHS-NIH-NIDCD
Research Related to Deafness and Communication Disorders 93.173
DHHS-PHS-NIH-NIDDKD
Diabetes, Endocrinology and Metabolism Research 93.847

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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$ 1,292,314

32,428

430,819
_113.793
544,612
96,681
657,496

1.548,749

2,302,926

302,298

357,292
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RUTGERS, THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW JERSEY

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal Federal
Program or Cluster CFDA Numbers Expenditures

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Direct:
DHHS-PHS-NIH-NIEHS
Biological Response to Environmental Health Hazards 93.113 $ 203,632
Various 93.RD 121,880
Subtotal 325,512
DHHS-PHS-NIH-NIGMS
Cell Biology and Biophysics Research 93.821 7,201,413
Genetics and Developmental Biology Research and Research 93.862 2,156,102
Minority Biomedical Research Support 93.375 4,766
Pharmacology, Physiology, and Biological Chemistry 93.859 1,002,365
Various 93.RD 296,486
Subtotal 10,661,132
DHHS-PHS-NIH-NIMH
Mental Health Research Career/Scientist Development 93.281 204,452
Menta! Health Research Grants 93.242 2,031,352
Various 93.RD 981,968
Subtotal 3,217,772
DHHS-PHS-NIH-NINCDS
Biological Basis Research in the Neurosciences 93.854 2,051,448
Extramural Research Programs in the Neurosciences and 93.853 662,702
Subtotal 2,714,150
DHHS-PHS-SAMHSA-CSAP
Consolidated Knowledge Development and Application 93.230 135,940
(Continued)

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal Federal
Program or Cluster CFDA Numbers Expenditures

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Direct:
DOD-DAF-Air Force Office of Scientific Research
Air Force Defense Research Sciences Program 12.800 $ 414,983
Basic, Applied, and Advanced Research in Science and 12.630 28,474
Various 12.RD 93398
Subtotal 536,855
DOD-DARPA
Research and Technology Development 12.910 705,947
Various 12.RD 204,440
Subtotal 910,387

DOD-Defense Logistics Agency
Various 12RD 750,457

DOD-Department of Veterans Affairs
Various 12.RD 3,000

DOD-DOA-ARMY RESEARCH OFFICE

Basic Scientific Research 12.431 24,268

Military Medical Research and Development 12.420 181,840

Various 12.RD 908,709
(Continued)

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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RUTGERS, THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW JERSEY

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal
Program or Cluster CFDA Numbers
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Direct:
DOD-DOA-ARMY RESEARCH OFFICE
Subtotal
DOD-DON-Office of Naval Research
Basic and Applied Scientific Research 12.300
Various 12.RD
Subtotal
DOD-National Security Agency
Mathematical Sciences Grants Program 12.901
Various 12.RD
Subtotal
Environmental Protection Agency
Air Pollution Contril Research 66.501
Pollution Prevention Grants Program 66.708
Solid Waste Management Assistance 66.808
Surveys, Studies, Investigations and Special Purpose Grants 66.606
Various 66.RD
Subtotal
Institute of Museum Services
Various 45 RD
National Aeronautics and Space Administration
Various 43.RD

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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Federal
Expenditures

$ 1,114,817

3,883,469
497,253

4,380,722

139,605
1,289

140,894

7,398
60,413
6,605
94,065

216,211

384,692

370

3,711,921

(Continued)



RUTGERS, THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW JERSEY

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal
Program or Cluster CFDA Numbers
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Direct:
National Endowment for the Humanities
Promotion of the Humanities_Division of Preservation and 45.149
Promotion of the Humanities_Research 45.161
Subtotal
National Historical Publications and Records Commission
National Historical Publications and Records Grants 89.003
Various 89.RD
Subtotal
National Science Foundation
Biological Sciences 47.074
Computer and Information Science and Engineering 47.070
Education and Human Resources 47.076
Engineering Grants 47.041
Geosciences 47.050
Mathematical and Physical Sciences 47.04
Polar Programs 47.078
Social, Behavioral, and Economic Sciences 47.075
Various 47.RD
Subtotal

Subtotal Direct Research and Development

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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Federal
Expenditures

5 73,124
116,512

———— e T

189,636

80,050

51,905

131,955

2,763,459
2,461,117
1,303,530
2,090,013
2,837,094
7,087,400
26,424
1,086,088
6,442,615
26,097,740

$95,769,857

(Continued)



RUTGERS, THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW JERSEY

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal Federal
Program or Cluster Title CFDA Numbers Expenditures

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Pass-Through:
Albert Einstein College of Medicine
Microbiology and Infectious Discases Research 93.856 $ 71,674

Allied-Signal Corporation
Various 12.RD 2,277

Barry A. Vittor & Associates, Inc.

Various 12.RD 40,140
Battelle
Various 84 RD 6,194

Brookhaven National Labs

Various 81.RD 18,962
Various 93.RD 72,673
Subtotal 91,635

California Institute of Technology

Various 43.RD (1,877)
Various 47 RD 34,476
Various 81.RD 146,473
Subtotal 179,072
(Continued)

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal
Program or Cluster Title CFDA Numbers

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Pass-Through:
California Polytechnic State University
Various

California State University
Various

Caribbean Marine Research Center
Undersea Research

Carnegic Mellon University
Various

Case Western Reserve University
Nursing Research

Catholic Community Services
Various

Ceramare Corporation
Various

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

84 RD

16.RD

11.430

81.RD

93.361

93.RD

47RD

Federal
Expenditures

$ 12,048

525

13,534

118,304

7,494

1,900

94,271

(Continued)



RUTGERS, THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW JERSEY

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal Federal
Program or Cluster Title CFDA Numbers Expenditures

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Pass-Through:
Children’s Hospital of Philadelphia
Mental Health Research Grants 93.242 $ 81,610

City College of New York
Engineering Grants 47.041 34,287

College of William and Mary
Various 12.RD 84,655

Colorado State University
Various 93.RD 88,769

Columbia University

Biomedical Technology 93.371 (686)

Social Services Research and Demonstration 93.647 (2,110)

Various 47.RD 50,445
Subtotal 47,649

Community Options, Inc.
Various 84.RD 27,154

Consortium for Oceanographic Research and Education
Basic and Applied Scientific Research 12.300 9,975

(Continued)
See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal
Program or Cluster Title CFDA Numbers

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Pass-Through:
Cornell University
Grants for Agricultural Research, Special Research Grants
Integrated Programs

Various
Subtotal

Cosmos Corporation
Various

Cumberland County Empowerment Zone Corporation
Various

CUNY
Various

Delaware River Basin Commission
Various

Desert Research Institute
Various

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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10.200

10.303

10.RD

47.RD

15.RD

20.RD

66.RD

12.RD

Federal

Expenditures

$ 143,515

44,002

31,821

——— =

219,338

2,145

50,601

1,627

629

10,358

(Continued)



RUTGERS, THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW JERSEY

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal Federal
Program or Cluster Title CFDA Numbers Expenditures

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Pass-Through:

Electricore Consortium

Various 12.RD $ (935)
Various 20.RD 142,207
Subtotal 141,272
Electro Energy, Inc.
Various 12.RD 16,927
Various 43.RD (1,166)
Subtotal 15,761
Energy Research Corporation
Various 81.RD 15,204
Foster-Miller, Inc.
Various 12.RD (23,073)
Fox Chase Cancer Center
Various 93.RD 6,197
Georgia Institute of Technology
Engineering Grants 47.041 2,763
(Continued)

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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RUTGERS, THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW JERSEY

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal
Program or Cluster Title CFDA Numbers

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Pass-Through:
Harvard University
Education and Human Resources
Various
Various
Various

Subtotal

Health Effects Institute
Various
Honeywell, Inc.

Various

Hospital for Special Surgery
Geosciences
Institute for Advanced Studies

Mathematical and Physical Sciences

Institute for Responsible Management, Inc.

Various

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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47.076
66.RD
81.RD
84 RD

66.RD

12.RD

47.050

47.049

81.RD

Federal

Expenditures

$ 28,028
33,346
54,243

_ 324,582

440,199

213,931

67,497

29,351

157,170

658,022

(Continued)



RUTGERS, THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW JERSEY

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal Federal
Program or Cluster Title CFDA Numbers Expenditures

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Pass-Through:

Integra Life Sciences

Various 11.RD $ (5,731)

| Jefferson Lab

Various 81.RD 57,241
Jet Propulsion Laboratory

Various 43 RD 14,000
Joint Center for Poverty Research

Various 93.RD 6,716
Lawrence Livermore National Laboratory

Various 81.RD 75,234

Layered Manufacturing, Inc.

Various 12.RD 28,445

Various 93.RD 19,503

Subtotal 47,948
(Continued)

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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RUTGERS, THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW JERSEY

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal Federal
Program or Cluster Title CFDA Numbers Expenditures

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Pass-Through:
Massachusetts Institute of Technology

Basic and Applied Scientific Research 12.300 $ 101,977
Engineering Grants 47.041 20,606
Mathematical and Physical Sciences 47.049 45,541

Subtotal 168,124

Michigan State University

Integrated Programs 10.303 35,664

NIEHS Superfund Hazardous Substances_Basic Research
and Education 93.143 206,428
Subtotal 242,092

Middlesex County

HIV Emergency Relief Project Grants 93914 61,632
Various 20.RD 12,875
Various 93.RD 92,623
Subtotal 167,130

Missouri Downtown Association
Various 15RD 34,554

Montefiore Medical Center
Microbiology and Infectious Diseases Research 93.856 17,278

Monterey Bay Aquarium Research Institute
Various 47.RD 10,000

(Continued)
See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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RUTGERS, THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW JERSEY

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal
Program or Cluster Title CFDA Numbers

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Pass-Through:
Mt. Sinai School of Medicine

Various
Nanopowder Enterprises, Inc.

Various

Nanoprobes, Inc.
Various

National Academy of Sciences
Various

New Brunswick Tomorrow
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families

New England Small Farm Institute, Inc.
Various

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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93.RD

12.RD

93.RD

20.RD

93.558

10.RD

Federal
Expenditures

$ 16,089

70,440

7,167

2,407

22,776

49,640

(Continued)



RUTGERS, THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW JERSEY

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal
Program or Cluster Title CFDA Numbers

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Pass-Through:
New Jersey Institute of Technology
Environmental Protection Consolidated Research
Various '

-

Various
Subtotal

New Jersey Marine Sciences Consortium
Sea Grant Support

Various
Subtotal

New Jersey Space Grant Consortium

Various

New Mexico State University
Military Medical Research and Development

New York University
Various

NJ Council for the Humanities
Various

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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66.500
20.RD

66.RD

11.417

11.RD

43.RD

12.420

93.RD

45RD

Federal
Expenditures

$ 7,148
225,267

10,303

242,718

97,591

__ 540,396
637,987

33,204

225,452

417,468

3,011

(Continued)



RUTGERS, THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW JERSEY

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal Federal
Program or Cluster Title CFDA Numbers Expenditures

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Pass-Through:
North Carolina State University

Polar Programs 47.078 $ 5,328
Various 47.RD (2,670)
Subtotal 2,058

Northeastern University

Various 47.RD 71,671
NZ Applied Technologies Corporation

Various 81.RD 3,290
Occidental College

Various 10.RD 50,800
Ohio State University

Mathematical and Physical Sciences 47.049 59,864

Various 93.RD 178,903

Subtotal 238,767

Pace University
Geosciences 47.050 11,212

Penn State University
Basic and Applied Scientific Research 12.300 155,768

(Continued)
See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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RUTGERS, THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW JERSEY

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal Federal
Program or Cluster Title CFDA Numbers Expenditures

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Pass-Through:
Penn State University

Cooperative Extension Service 10.500 $ 17,834
Grants for Agricultural Research, Special Research Grants 10.200 26,891
Integrated Programs 10.303 48,373
Mathematical and Physical Sciences 47.049 30,643

Subtotal 279,509

Princeton University

Various 47RD 167,282
Various 93 RD 457
Subtotal 167,739

Purdue University

Research and Training in Complementary and Alternative 93.213 116,397
Medicine
Research and Development Laboratories
Air Force Defense Research Sciences Program 12.800 (7,853)
Science Applications International Corporation
Various 12.RD 34,798
Various 93.RD 92,197
Subtotal 126,995

Sensors Unlimited, Inc.
Various 43 RD (6,289)

(Continued)
See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal
Program or Cluster Title CFDA Numbers

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Pass-Through:

Slattery-Skanska
Various

Smithsonian Astrophysical Observatory
Various

SNJ-Commission on Cancer Research
Various

SNIJ-Department of Education
Various

SNJ-Department of Environmental Protection
Coastal Zone Management Administration Awards
Grants for Mining and Mineral Resources and Research
Institutes

National Estuary Program

National Spatial Data Infrastructure Cooperative
Agreements Program

Performance Partnership Grants

Various

Water Pollution Control_State and Interstate Program
Support

Wetlands Grants

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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20.RD

43.RD

46.RD

84 RD

11419
15.308

66.456

15.809

66.605

66.RD
66.419

66.461

Federal

Expenditures

$  164.076

157,241

27,524

64,629

17,913
8,044

35,334

8,857

79,535

69,486
86,851

2,972
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SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal Federal
Program or Cluster Title CFDA Numbers Expenditures

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Pass-Through:
SNJ-Department of Environmental Protection

Subtotal $ 308,992

SNJ-Department of Health
Various 93.RD 10,323

SNJ-Department of Health and Senior Services

Center for Research for Mothers and Children 93.865 96,443

Centers for Disease Control and 93.283 40,679

Prevention_Investigations and Technical Assistance

Various 84.RD 1,835

Various 93.RD 707,007
Subtotal 845,964

SNJ-Department of Human Services
Various 93.RD 264,869

SNJ-Department of Transportation

Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 147,014
University Transportation Centers Program 20.701 458
Various 20.RD 1,448,551
Various 81.RD (7.793)
Subtotal 1,588,230

SNJ-DLPS-Division of Criminal Justice
Byrne Formula Grant Program 16.579 4,716

(Continued)
See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/
Pass-Through Grantor/
Program or Cluster Title

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Pass-Through:

Space Telescope Science Institute
Various

Sprinkle Consulting, Inc.
Various

Stanford University
Various

State of Connecticut
Various

Stroud Water Research Center
Various

SUNY-Albany
Various

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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Various
Federal
CFDA Numbers

43.RD

20.RD

93.RD

20.RD

47.RD

12.RD

Federal
Expenditures

$ 159,712

23,068

9,000

12,010

10,185

24,280

(Continued)



RUTGERS, THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW JERSEY

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal Federal
Program or Cluster Title CFDA Numbers Expenditures

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Pass-Through:
SUNY-The Research Foundation

Various 11.RD $ 3,995
Various 93.RD 813,448
Subtotal 817,443

Temple University
Various 47 RD 10,818
Various 84 RD 118,500
Subtotal 129,318

Township of Lakewood, NJ
Various 16.RD 3,571

Township of North Brunswick
Various 16.RD 2,811

TRC Garrow Associates Inc.

Various 12.RD 807
UMDNIJ
Arthritis, Musculoskeletal and Skin Diseases Research 93.846 54,306
Biological Basis Research in the Neurosciences 93.854 (3,305)
Biological Response to Environmental Health Hazards 93.113 185,442
Center for Research for Mothers and Children 93.865 100,665
Office of Science and Technology for Environmental 81.104 (4,631)
Management
(Continued)

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal Federal
Program or Cluster Title CFDA Numbers Expenditures

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Pass-Through:

UMDNIJ
Various 66.RD $ 24,843
Various 81.RD 31,573
Various 93 RD 1,238,398

Subtotal 1,627,291

Universities Consortium for Geographic Information Sciences
U.S. Geological Survey Research and Data Acquisition 15.808 2,050

Universities Space Research Association

Various 12.RD 790
Various 43 RD 37,117
Subtotal 37,907

University of Arkansas

Various 12.RD 17,899
University of California
Microbiology and Infectious Diseases Research 93.856 17,383

University of California-Berkeley
Various 8§1.RD 91,995

(Continued)
See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal Federal
Program or Cluster Title CFDA Numbers Expenditures

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Pass-Through:

University of California-Davis

Various 10.RD ) 2,457
Various 47.RD 3,127
Subtotal 5,584

University of California-Los Alamos National Laboratory

Various 81.RD (973)

University of California-San Diego
Various 11.RD 31,387
Various 47RD 17,917
Subtotal 49,304

University of Cincinnati

Biological Response to Environmental Health Hazards 93.113 114,063
University of Florida
Biological Sciences 47.074 161,529

University of Georgia

Various 93.RD 249,248
University of Hawaii
Various 93 RD 18,899
(Continued)

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

58



RUTGERS, THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW JERSEY

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal Federal
Program or Cluster Title CFDA Numbers Expenditures

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Pass-Through:
University of Illinois

Computer and Information Science and Engineering 47.070 $ 3,102
Social Security Research and Demonstration 96.007 529,795
Various 93 .RD 139,899
Various 96.RD 63,786
Subtotal 730,582
University of Maryland
Various 43 RD 22,582
Various 47.RD 306,013
Subtotal 328,595
University of Minnesota
Basic, Applied, and Advanced Research in Science and 12.630 233,169
Engineering
Various 47.RD 48,160
Various 66.RD -4,169
Various 93.RD -625
Subtotal 276,535

University of Missouri
Various 12.RD 97,575

University of New Hampshire
Coastal Zone Management Estuarine Research Reserves 11.420 24,579

(Continued)
See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal Federal
Program or Cluster Title CFDA Numbers Expenditures

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Pass-Through:
University of New Hampshire

Unallied Science Program 11.472 $ 15,665
Subtotal 40,244
University of New Mexico
Various 12.RD 250,685
University of North Carolina
Cell Biology and Biophysics Research 93.821 51,548
Various 11.RD 5,888
Subtotal 57,436
University of Pennsylvania
Cooperative Extension Service 10.500 2,222
Various 84.RD 61,577
Subtotal 63,799

University of Pittsburgh
Biological Basis Research in the Neurosciences 93.854 161,483

University of Puerto Rico
Mental Health Research Grants 93.242 13,782

University of Rochester
Various 12.RD 41,114

(Continued)
See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
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Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal Federal
Program or Cluster Title CFDA Numbers Expenditures

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Pass-Through:
University of Tennessee

Education and Human Resources 47.076 $ 21,979
Various 81.RD 25,166
Subtotal 47,145

University of Vermont

Grants for Agricultural Research, Special Research Grants 10.200 48,659
Various 10.RD 74,060
Subtotal 122,719

University of Washington
Various 43 RD 45,008
Various 93.RD 96,327
Subtotal 141,335

University of Wisconsin

Various 47.RD 77,680
US Infrastructure, Inc.
Various 66.RD 37,984
Vanderbilt University
Various 10.RD 3,266
(Continued)

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/
Pass-Through Grantor/
Program or Cluster Title

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Pass-Through:

Virginia Institute of Marine Science

Fisheries Development and Utilization Research and

Development Grants and Cooper
Sea Grant Support

Subtotal

Washington State University

Computer and Information Science and Engineering

Population Research

Subtotal

Washington University -~ St. Louis
Various

Various

Subtotal

Wayne State University

Engineering Grants

Westchester County

Various

Western Massachusetts Training Consortium, Inc.

Various

Various
Federal
CFDA Numbers

11.427

11.417

47.070

93.864

47.RD
93.RD

47.041

14.RD

93.RD

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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Federal
Expenditures

33,401

10,865

44,266

99,125

37,632

136,757

27,617
2,540,686

2,568,303

26,411

24,999

82,909

(Continued)



RUTGERS, THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW JERSEY

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal Federal
Program or Cluster Title CFDA Numbers Expenditures

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Pass-Through:

Yale University
Office of Science Financial Assistance Program §1.049 6,080
Subtotal Pass-Through Research and Development 19,048,632
Subtotal Research and Development $114,818,489

(Continued)
See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
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Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal Federal
Program Title CFDA Numbers Expenditures
OUTSTANDING LOANS:
Student
Perkins Loans 84.038 $38,164,876
Income-Contingent Loans 84.226 420,193
Subtotal Student Loans 38,585,009
Department of Education-Building Loan 84.UNK 1,831,726
Subtotal Outstanding Loans $40,416,795

(Continued)
See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002
Federal Grantor/
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal
Program or Cluster Title CFDA Numbers

STUDENT FINANCIAL AID CLUSTER:
Direct:
Department of Education

Federal Supplemental Educational

Opportunity Grant Program 84.007
Federal Direct Loan Program 84.032
Federal Work Study Program 84.033
Federal Pell Grant Program 84.063

Department of Health and Human Services-Public Health Service

Scholarships for Disadvantaged Students 93.925

Subtotal Student Financial Aid

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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Agency or
Pass-Through
Number

E-PO07A72602

E-PO33A72602

E-PO63P74152

3-4017839D97

Federal
Expenditures

2,755,508
116,495,556
5,425,543

25,459,690

83,880

$150.220,177

(Continued)



RUTGERS, THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW JERSEY

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal Federal
Program or Cluster Title CFDA Numbers Expenditures
OTHER PROGRAMS:
Direct:
Department of Agriculture
Cooperative Forestry Assistance 10.664 22,118
Food and Agricultural Sciences National Needs 10.210 58,123
Graduate Fellowship Grants
Grants for Agricultural Research_Competitive 10.206 5,577
Research Grants
Higher Education Challenge Grants 10.217 47,635
Higher Education Multicultural Scholars Program 10.220 15,453
Payments to Agricultural Experiment Stations Under 10.203 2,689,523
the Hatch Act
Various 10.58-6435-6-028 -370
Subtotal 2,838,059

Department of Commerce-NOAA

Coastal Zone Management Estuarine Research 11.420 15,593

Reserves

Cooperative Science and Education Program 11.455 162,557

Various 11 NAS6ABOSSS 59,018

Various 11.NA970R0150 97,539
Subtotal 334,707

Department of Education

Upward Bound 84.047 246,580
Various 84.344A990010 157,054
Various 84.P042A970372-99 84,657
Various 84 P047A50786-98 -3,389
Various 84.P047A990203 521,159
Various 84.P116B980382 74,182
Various 84 P170B980013 2,586
Various 84.P200A000107 102,417
Various 84.P200A980711-99 25,515
Various 84.P217A990154 154,307
Various 84.P334A000068 88,790
Various 84.P334A990513 193,557

(Continued)

Sce accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal Federal
Program or Cluster Title CFDA Numbers Expenditures
OTHER PROGRAMS:
Direct:
Department of Education

Various 84.P342A000209 176,165
Various 84.P344A990014 170,942
Various 84 R215K 010193 268,359
Various 84 R303K 000048 12,750
Various 84 UNK 3,202,833
Subtotal 5,478,464

Department of Energy
Various 81.UNK 7,773

Department of Housing and Urban Development

Community Outreach Partnership Center Program 14.511 34,063
Housing Subsidy - NJEFA Bonds 14 UNK 135,364
Housing Subsidy - Series H Bonds 14 UNK 69,381
Various 14.CDWS-NJ-0011 54,976
Various 14.CDWS-NJ-99-026 2,946
Various 14 H-21228SG 7,899
Various 14 H-21231SG 2,267
Various 14 H-21280 SG 12,809
Various 14.UNK 8,269

Subtotal 327,974

Department of Justice

Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant 93.991 181,374
Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing 16.710 25,818

Grants
Various 16.1999CMWX2469 -6,342
Various 16.2000-1J-CX-0046 1,821
Various 16.UNK 107,876
Subtotal 310,547
(Continued)

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
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Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal Federal
Program or Cluster Title CFDA Numbers Expenditures
OTHER PROGRAMS:
Direct:
Department of Labor
Various 17.34-TAT-001-96 SUB#18 88,790
Various 17.46B9HTO6 62,443
Various 17.E-9-K-9-0002 1,854
Various 17.K-6826-8-00-80-30 557,796
Subtotal 710,883
Department of State
College and University Partnerships Program 19.405 26,025
Various 19.UNK 238,373
Subtotal 264,398
Department of the Interior-USGS
Assistance to State Water Resources Research 15.805 29,778
Institutes

Department of Transportation-FAA

Various 20.98-G-017 157,630

Department of Transportation-FTA
University Transportation Centers Program 20.701 296,262
Various 20.NJ-26-2901 2,991
Various 20.NJ-26-7006 4,453,930
Various 20.NJ-26-7042 8,700
Subtotal 4,761,883

DHHS-PHS-FDA

Various 93.223-98-6051 94,913
(Continued)

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/
Pass-Through Grantor/
Program or Cluster Title

OTHER PROGRAMS:

Direct:
DHHS-PHS-HRSA

Basic Nurse Education and Practice Grants

Nurse Practitioner and Nurse-Midwifery Education
Programs
Subtotal

DHHS-PHS-HRSA-BHP-NUR

Advanced Education Nursing Grant Program
Advanced Education Nursing Traineeships
Basic Nurse Education and Practice Grants

Subtotal

DHHS-PHS-NIH

Cell Biology and Biophysics Research

Drug Abuse National Research Service Awards for
Research Training
Heart and Vascular Diseases Research

Research Infrastructure
Various
Various

Subtotal
DHHS-PHS-NIH-FIC

Senior International Fellowships

DHHS-PHS-NIH-NCI

Cancer Biology Research
Cancer Research Manpower
Various

Subtotal

Various
Federal
CFDA Numbers

93.359
93.298

93.247
93.358
93.359

93.821
93.278

93.837

93.389
93.90CT0076/01
93.UNK

93.989

93.396
93.398
93.UNK

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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Federal
Expenditures

-803
-2,007

-2,810

392,116
133,519
1,538

527,173

182,469
29,566

94,317
207,960
96,994
149.378

760,684

6,419

&,000
19,456
20,209

47,665

(Continued)



RUTGERS, THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW JERSEY

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/
Pass-Through Grantor/
Program or Cluster Title

OTHER PROGRAMS:

Direct:
DHHS-PHS-NIH-NIAAA

Alcohol National Research Service Awards for
Research Training
Various

Various

Subtotal

DHHS-PHS-NIH-NIAID

Microbiology and Infectious Diseases Research

DHHS-PHS-NIH-NIDA
Drug Abuse National Research Service Awards for
Research Training

DHHS-PHS-NIH-NIEHS

Resource and Manpower Development in the
Envireonmental Health Sciences
Various

Subtotal

DHHS-PHS-NIH-NIGMS

Pharmacology, Physiology, and Biological
Chemistry Research

Special Minority Initiatives

Special Minority Initiatives

Various

Various

Subtotal

DHHS-PHS-NIH-NIMH

Mental Health National Research Service Awards for

Research Training
Mental Health Research Grants

Various

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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Yarious
Federal
CFDA Numbers

93.272
93.5T32 AA 07569-05

93.5T32 AA 07569-06

93.856

93.278

93.894

93.5 T32 ES07148-13

93.859
93.96

93.960
93.2 T32 GM 08339-11
93.5R25GM60826-02

03.282

93.242
93.1 T32 MH19975-02

Federal
Expenditures

144,341
5,888
11,671

161,900

25,445

252,406
85,477

79,554
-3,118
268,523

682,842

523,872

121,298
-225

(Continued)



RUTGERS, THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW JERSEY

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various ‘
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal Federal
Program or Cluster Title CFDA Numbers Expenditures
OTHER PROGRAMS:
Direct:
DHHS-PHS-NIH-NIMH

Various 93.UNK 21,767
Subtotal 660,712

DHHS-PHS-NIH-NINCDS

Biological Basis Research in the Neurosciences 93.854 ,119
Extramural Research Programs in the Neurosciences 93.853 27317
and Neurological Disorders

Subtotal 116,436

DHHS-PHS-NIH-NINR

Various 93.1F31NR07538-01NIH 22,756
DH

Various 93 UNK 8,503

Subtotal 31,259

DOD-DAF-Air Force Office of Scientific Research

Air Force Defense Research Sciences Program 12.800 5,974
DOD-DOA-Army Research Office
Various 12. TNGGRP00007029 262
DOD-DON-Office of Naval Research
Basic and Applied Scientific Research 12.300 52,032
Various 12.UNK 10,000
Subtotal 62,032

DOD-National Security Agency
Various 12.UNK 92,416

(Continuced)
See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/
Pass-Through Grantor/
Program or Cluster Title

OTHER PROGRAMS:
Direct:
Environmental Protection Agency
Pollution Prevention Grants Program

Solid Waste Management Assistance

Surveys, Studies, Investigations and Special Purpose
Grants
Sustainable Development Challenge Grants

Training and Fellowships for the Environmental
Protection Agency
Various

Various

Various

Various

Various

Various
Subtotal

Internal Revenue Service
Low-Income Taxpayer Clinics

Various

Subtotal

National Aeronautics and Space Administration
Various
Various
Various

Various

Subtotal

National Endowment for the Arts
Promotion of the Arts_Partnership Agreements

Various

Subtotal

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

Various
Federal
CFDA Numbers

66.708
66.808
606.606

66.651
66.607

66.CT 901782-03

66.DW12941562-01-8

66.T 826479-01-2
66.U915430-01-0
66.UNK

66.X982102-00-0

21.008
21.JRS 2001-1103

43.NAG5-9746
43.NGTS-50229
43 NGT5-50364
43.UNK

45.025
45.UNK

Federal
Expenditures

97,358
-269
171,320

71,243
276,448

-14,717
-3,102
25,559

400
6,785
-0,290

624,735

34,509
56,540

91,049

787
4,299
16,028
17,962

39,076

10,223
2,403

12,626

(Continued)



RUTGERS, THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW JERSEY

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal
Program or Cluster Title CFDA Numbers
OTHER PROGRAMS:
Direct:

National Science Foundation

Education and Human Resources 47.076
Engineering Grants 47.041
Geosciences 47.05
Mathematical and Physical Sciences 47.049
Social, Behavioral, and Economic Sciences 47.075
Various 47.CCR 9906105
Various 47.DBI 9601851
Various 47.DBI 9974200
Various 47.DGE 9616173
Various 47.DGE 9903663
Various 47.ESR 9810311
Subtotal

Small Business Administration

Small Business Development Center 59.037
Various 59.SBA01-7620-0031-20
Subtotal

US Information Agency

Various 82.011

Various 82 IA-ASLJ-G7190037

Various 82 JA-PNJL-G9190180
Subtotal

Subtotal Direct Other Programs

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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Federal
Expenditures

3,142,951
94,618
6,514
147,573
21,129
068,600
-21,849
231
3,536
-1,053
15,684

3,477,940

989,517
1,671,248

2,660,765

18,671
4,226

19,570

42.467

$25,741.,619

(Continued)



RUTGERS, THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW JERSEY

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal Federal
Program or Cluster Title CFDA Numbers Expenditures
OTHER PROGRAMS:

Pass-Through:
Academy of Applied Science

Various 12.DAAGS55-98-1-0468 1,588
Various 12.UNK 17.126
Subtotal 18,714

American Sociological Association
Various 47 UNK 4,861

Association of Universities for Research in Astronomy, Inc.
Various 47 . UNK 17,390

City of Newark, NJ
Various 14 NDGCNO 2,122

Columbia University
Various 93.UNK 243,533

Consortium for Oceanographic Research and Education
Basic and Applied Scientific Research 12.300 1,071

(Continued)
See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal
Program or Cluster Title CFDA Numbers
OTHER PROGRAMS:

Pass-Through:

Cumberland County Empowerment Zone Corporation

Various 14 UNK

CUNY-Transportation Research Center

Federal Transit Grants for University

Research and Training 20.502
University Transportation Centers Program 20.701
Subtotal

East Carolina Univeristy

Various 47 RD
Fermilab
Various 47 UNK

Institute for International Education
Various 19.ASPS-1021

Institute of Electrical & Electronics Engineers, Inc.

Various 47 . UNK

International Association of Chiefs of Police
Various 20.UNK

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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Federal
Expenditures

7,183

10,033
3.558

13,591

24,713

8,800

106,560

13,267

1,782

(Continued)
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SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal Federal
Program or Cluster Title CFDA Numbers Expenditures
OTHER PROGRAMS:

Pass-Through:

Joint Oceanographic Institutions, Inc.
Various 47 UNK 14,885

LEAP Academy Charter School
Various 84 . UNK 130,506

National Research Council

Various 47 UNK 2,749

National Urban League

Various 17.UNK 82,017

National Writing Project

84.UNK 19,256
NESCAUM
Various 66.UNK 2,027
(Continued)

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
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Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal
Program or Cluster Title CFDA Numbers
OTHER PROGRAMS:
Pass-Through:
New York University
Civil Rights Training and Advisory Services 8§4.004
Various §4.5004D990013-02
Various 84.UNK
Subtotal

NJ Council for the Humanities

Various 45 UNK

Ohio State University

Education and Human Resources 47.076

Research for Better Schools, Inc.

Eisenhower Regional Mathematics and Science Education  84.319
Consortia

Rodale Institute

Initiative for Future Agriculture and Food Systems 10.302

SNJ-Department of Agriculture
Various 10.450
Various 10.UNK

Subtotal

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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Federal
Expenditures

111,583
3,225
(1.599)

113,209

3,992

69,932

9,261

16,648

135,916
18,618

154,534

(Continued)
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SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/
Pass-Through Grantor/
Program or Cluster Title

OTHER PROGRAMS:
Pass-Through:

SNI-Department of Commerce & Economic Development
Small Business Development Center

Various

Subtotal

SNJ-Department of Community Affairs
Community Services Block Grant

Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant

Subtotal

SNJ-Department of Education
Eisenhower Professional Development State Grants

Goals 2000_State and Local Education Systemic
Improvement Grants
Subtotal

SNJ-Department of Environmental Protection

Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving
Fund
Highway Planning and Construction

Nonpoint Source Implementation Grants
Various

Various
Subtotal
SNIJ-Department of Health and Senior Services

HIV Prevention ActivitiesHealth Department Based

Various

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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Various
Federal
CFDA Numbers

59.037
59.UNK

93.569
93.991

84.281
84.276

66.468

20.205
66.460
21.NONE
66.UNK

93.940
93.UNK

Federal
Expenditures

1,172
(196,134)
(194,962)

19,439
101,464

120,903

143,246
15,771

159,017

25,321

10,428
63,543
24,708

2,376

126,377

(230)
__(851)

(Continued)
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SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal Federal
Program or Cluster Title CFDA Numbers Expenditures
OTHER PROGRAMS:
Pass-Through:
SNJ-Department of Health and Senior Services
Subtotal (1,081)
SNJ-Department of Human Services
Various 10.RNEOOC 1,647,547
SNJ-Department of Law and Public Safety
Crime Victim Assistance 16.575 60,579
Various 20.N/A 55,579
Various 20.RD 26,173
Various 20.UNK 13,676
Subtotal 156,007
SNJ-Department of Transportation
Various 20.99R001 687,683
Various 20.99R001 TASK 13 378,570
Various 20.UNK 224,558
Subtotal 1,290,811
SNJ-DLPS-Juvenile Justice Commission
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention_Allocation to 16.540 40,407
States
Various 20.UNK 28,743
(Continued)

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
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Federal Grantor/ Various
Pass-Through Grantor/ Federal Federal
Program or Cluster Title CFDA Numbers Expenditures
OTHER PROGRAMS:
Pass-Through:
SNJ-New Jersey Highway Authority
Subtotal 28,743

Technical Education Research Centers, Inc.

Various 47 ESR 0092129 20,356
Tuskegee University

Various 43 NAG10-281 2,460
UMDNJ

Various 93.R25 ES10697-01 30,134
United Technologies Research Corporation
Federal Transit Grants for University

Research and Training 20.502 4,000
University of Connecticut

Higher Education Challenge Grants 10.217 9,121
University of Massachusetts

Education and Human Resources 47.076 25,075

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/
Pass-Through Grantor/
Program or Cluster Title

OTHER PROGRAMS:
Pass-Through:

University of Nevada

Small Business Development Center

University of Puerto Rico

Biological Sciences

University of Vermont

Various

Subtotal Pass-Through Other Programs
Subtotal Other Programs
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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Various
Federal
CFDA Numbers

59.037

47.074

10.NE SARE

Federal
Expenditures

4,586,837
30,328,456
$335,783,917

(Concluded)



RUTGERS, THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW JERSEY

NOTE TO SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The purpose of the Supplemental Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the “Schedule”™) is to
present a summary of those activities of the University for the year ended June 30, 2002, which have
been financed by the U.S. Government (“Federal Awards™). For purposes of the Schedule, Federal
Awards include all Federal assistance and procurement relationships entered into directly between the
University and the Federal government and sub-awards from non-Federal organizations made under
federally sponsored agreements. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133, 4udits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the activities of the University,
it is not intended to and does not present either the financial position, changes in net assets or the
revenues, expenses, and cash flows of the University. For reporting purposes, Federal Expenditures
have been classified into three types:

1. Research and development,
2. Student financial aid, and

3. Awards other than student financial aid and sponsored research, principally development and
training activities.

The accounting principles followed by the University in each of these areas and used in preparing the
accompanying schedules are as follows:

o Awards Other Than Student Financial Aid - Disbursements (expenditures) for direct costs are
recognized as incurred using the accrual method of accounting and the cost accounting principles
contained in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-21, Cost Principles for
Educational Institutions. Under those cost principles, certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Moreover, expenditures include a portion of costs
associated with general university activities which are allocated to Federal Expenditures under
negotiated formulas commonly referred to as facilities and administrative (“F&A”) costs rates.
F&A costs applicable to these cost recoveries are classified as unrestricted expenditures in the
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets. Credit disbursement amounts
typically result from grant or contract closing adjustments or transfers.

e Student Financial Aid - Disbursements are recognized on the accrual basis for awards made to
students and for allowable administrative expenses of running such programs.
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PART II - REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WTH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS



Deloitic & Touche LLP

Third Floor

750 College Road Fast
Princeton, New Jersey 08540

I'el: (609) 514-3600
Fax: (609) 514-3603

www.deloitte.com DQIOitte
& Touche

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED

ON AN AUDIT PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

The Board of Governors
The Board of Trustees
Rutgers, The State University of New Jersey

We have audited the financial statements of Rutgers, The State University of New Jersey (the
“University”) as of and for the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001, and have issued our report thereon
dated September 13, 2002. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the University’s financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audits and, accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audits, we considered the University’s internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our
consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters
in the internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness
is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does
not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in
relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period
by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters
involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

83




This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Governors, Board of Trustees,
management, federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

MﬁMLLF

September 13, 2002
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PART III - REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM



Deloitie & Touchie LLP

Third Floor

750 College Road East
Princeton, New Jersey 08540

Tel: (609) 514-3600
Fax: (609) 514-3603

www.deloitte.com De I Oitte
& Touche

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM

The Board of Governors
The Board of Trustees
Rutgers, The State University of New Jersey

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Rutgers, The State University of New Jersey (the “University”)
with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2002. The University’s major federal programs are identified in
the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned
Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each
of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the University’s management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on the University’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB
Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about the University’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the University’s
compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the University complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to
above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2002.

Internal Control over Compliance

The management of the University is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to
federal and state programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the University’s
internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with
OMB Circular A-133.

Deloitie
Touche 85
Tolnaisy



Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in
the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the
design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively
low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants that would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be
detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that
we consider to be material weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Governors, Board of
Trustees, management, federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities and 1s not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

M%Méﬁ/

September 13, 2002

86



PART IV - SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND
QUESTIONED COSTS



RUTGERS, THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW JERSEY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Part I - Summary of Auditors’ Results

1.

9.

The independent auditors’ report on the financial statements expressed an unqualified opinion.
No reportable conditions in internal control over financial reporting were identified.
No instance of noncompliance considered material to the financial statements was disclosed by the audit.

No reportable conditions in internal control over compliance with requirements applicable to major Federal
awards were identified.

The independent auditors” report on compliance with requirements applicable to major federal award
programs expressed an unqualified opinion.

The audit disclosed no findings required to be reported by OMB Circular A-133.

The University’s major programs were:

Name of Federal Program of Cluster CFDA Number
Research and Development Cluster Various
Other programs:
Department of Transportation-Various 20.NJ-26-7006

A threshold of $3,000,000 was used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs as those terms are
defined in OMB Circular A-133.

The Organization qualified as a low-risk auditee as that term is defined in OMB Circular A-133.

Part II - Financial Statement Findings Section

Reference Questioned
Number Findings Costs

No matters are reportable.

Part I1I - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Cost Section

Reference Questioned
Number Findings Costs

No matters are reportable

k %k ok ok ok ok
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